# Village of Mogadore

# 135 South Cleveland Avenue Mogadore, OH 44260

Phone: (330) 628-4896 | Fax: (330) 628-5850

Web Site: www.mogadorevillage.org

#### COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

December 4, 2024 5:30 p.m.

- 1. Moment of Reflection Ms. Miller
- 2. Pledge to the flag
- 3. Roll Call
- 4. President Pro-Temp
- 5. Approval of the Agenda
- 6. Comments from the Audience on the pending legislation
- 7. Committee Reports
- 8. Old Business None
- 9. New Business –

**Resolution 2024-75** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee - (Exhibit A)

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-62, INCLUDING EXHIBIT A THERETO, ENTITLED "WAGE AND BENEFIT PACKAGE FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OTHER THAN POLICE DEPARTMENT AND FIRE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES", AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

#### **Resolution 2024-76** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-100 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS FOR THE FULL-TIME ASSISTANT CLERK IN THE VILLAGE'S FINANCE OFFICE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

#### **Resolution 2024-77** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-101 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED BY THE VILLAGE TO THE FIRE CHIEF, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

**Resolution 2024-78** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee - (Exhibit A)

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FULL-TIME FIREFIGHTER HANDBOOK TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASES IN COMPENSATION FOR FULL-TIME FIREFIGHTERS IN THE VILLAGE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

**Resolution 2024-79** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee - (Exhibit A)

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PART-TIME FIREFIGHTER HANDBOOK TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASES IN COMPENSATION FOR PART-TIME FIREFIGHTERS IN THE VILLAGE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# Resolution 2024-80 – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-102 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED BY THE VILLAGE TO THE CHIEF OF POLICE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# **Resolution 2024-81** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2024-17 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS FOR THE FULL-TIME POLICE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/MAYOR'S COURT CLERK, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# Resolution 2024-82 – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-108 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION FOR THE MAYOR'S COURT MAGISTRATE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# Resolution 2024-83 – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2023-107, SECTION 1 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION OF THE PART-TIME ZONING INSPECTOR, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# Resolution 2024-84 - Ms. Van Dike - Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2023-109, SECTION 1 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION FOR THE PART-TIME POSITION OF CEMETERY SEXTON, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# **Resolution 2024-85** – Mr. Tonsic – Sponsor: Streets Committee - (Rate Attachment)

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF GPD GROUP TO SERVE AS THE MUNICIPAL ENGINEER, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

#### **Resolution 2024-86** – Mr. Yoho – Sponsor: Safety Committee

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SELL A 2015 FORD EXPLORER POLICE CRUISER VIA ONLINE AUCTION THROUGH GOVDEALS.COM, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# Resolution 2024-87- Mr. Bauer - Sponsor: Utilities Committee

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CLERK-TREASURER TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THE EXISTING MONUMENT SIGN AT VILLAGE HALL WITH A NEW ELECTRONIC MONUMENT SIGN, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

# **Resolution 2024-88** – Ms. Van Dike – Sponsor: Finance Committee

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE MOGADORE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR A GRANT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$3,000.00 PER YEAR FOR THREE YEARS, A TOTAL GRANT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$9,000.00, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

#### 10. Comments

- 1. Public
- 2. Council
- 3. Law Director
- 4. Village Engineer
- 5. Clerk-Treasurer
- 6. Mayor

# 11. Adjournment

Resolution No.	2024-75	Passed	, 2024

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2024-62, INCLUDING EXHIBIT A THERETO, ENTITLED "WAGE AND BENEFIT PACKAGE FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OTHER THAN POLICE DEPARTMENT AND FIRE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES", AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Mayor and the Finance Committee that this Council amend Resolution No. 2024-62, and Exhibit A attached thereto, entitled "Wage and Benefits Package for Full-Time Employees Other Than Police Department and Fire Department Employees," to increase the compensation of the full-time employees of the Village other than the full-time Police Department and Fire Department employees; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village of Mogadore to amend Resolution No. 2024-62 and the Exhibit A attached thereto for the reason set forth above.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: Resolution 2024-62 and Exhibit A attached thereto are hereby amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, entitled "Wage and Benefit Package for Full-Time Employees Other Than Police Department and Fire Department Employees," which is incorporated herein.

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be effective December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: All other ordinances, resolutions, or parts of other ordinances and resolutions which may be in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared null and void and are of no further force and effect.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 5: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for employees of the Village, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

Resolution No. 2024-75	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

# WAGE AND BENEFIT PACKAGE FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OTHER THAN POLICE DEPARTMENT AND FIRE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES

# FOR THE YEAR 2025 Resolution 2024-75 Passed: 12/04/2024

<u>SECTION 1</u>: WAGES. Effective beginning December 28, 2024, employees shall be compensated according to the following scale:

Street Department Full Time Employees: 2025 - \$25.88 per hour

Street Department Supervisor: 2025 - \$33.68 per hour

SECTION 2: NEW FULL TIME EMPLOYEES.

New full-time employees shall be hired and compensated at the rates set forth in Section 1.

#### SECTION 3: CLOTHING ALLOWANCE.

In addition to the uniforms provided by the Village of Mogadore to full-time street employees including the street supervisor, said employees shall receive an allowance of \$450.00 for 2025 per man for the purchase of foul weather clothing. Upon proof of purchase of said clothing by way receipts presented to the Clerk, said full-time employee shall be reimbursed for said expense. Purchase of jackets or any other type of wearing apparel shall be of uniform color.

#### **SECTION 4: INSURANCE.**

1) The Employer will provide insurance on behalf of each full-time employee and eligible dependents for hospitalization, medical, optical, and dental insurance. For 2025, monthly premium payroll deductions and required co-pays for all employees shall be in accordance with the schedule provided by Employee Benefits International.

The term "Full-Time Employees" shall include all elected officials of the Village, who are regularly employed and compensated on a full-time basis

- 2) Insurance coverage shall be also provided for the surviving spouse and/or eligible children of a deceased employee for a period of three (3) months after death.
- 3) The Employer will provide and pay the full premium for all full-time employees for a life insurance policy in the face of forty thousand dollars (\$40,000.00).
- 4) The Employer expressly reserves the right to change insurance coverage or carriers, so long as the new coverage meets the requirements contained within Section 1, Section 2, Section 3, and Section 4, contained herein.

## **SECTION 5: LONGEVITY.**

On the first day of the month following a full-time employee's completion of four, nine, fourteen, nineteen, and twenty-four years of service with the Village of Mogadore said full-time employees other than Police Department and Fire Department employees shall be entitled to, in addition to current base salary an amount equal to two, three, four, five, and six percent respectively of the current base salary.

# SECTION 6: ACTING SUPERVISOR.

In the absence of the Street Supervisor for vacation, personal or sick time, the person who has been designated to be Acting Supervisor will be compensated at a rate of Four Dollars (\$4.00) per hour over and above his normal rate of compensation. Said compensation applies to any hours worked as an acting supervisor and shall be the responsibility of the Street Supervisor to identify said person and hours per time cards when warranted. Said rate of compensation for the acting supervisor will be in effect September 8, 2006.

# SECTION 7: SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL.

Street Department workers and the Street Supervisor will be compensated with a SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL of five dollars (\$5.00) per hour paid for hours worked between the hours of. 3:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. The shift differential will only be paid for regular hours worked. Shift differential will not be paid if the employee works between 3:30 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. and these are overtime hours. The employee will receive overtime pay only for these hours.

Additionally, Street Department workers and the Street Supervisor will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times the employee's regular rate of pay for all time worked prior to the 7:30am start of their shift in the event they are called in early by the Mayor for snow-plowing purposes. However, such shift differential will not be paid if such hours are overtime hours. The employee will receive overtime pay only for these hours.

# SECTION 8: WORK WEEK.

Work week shall be defined as five (5) eight (8) hour days, totaling forty (40) hours, from 12:00 a.m. Monday through Friday.

All employees, for work performed in excess of eight (8) hours per day or eighty (80) hours in the standard work period, shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times the employee's regular rate for all overtime. All hours that are paid shall be included in the computation of overtime.

Paychecks shall be issued Bi-weekly.

#### **SECTION 9: SICK LEAVE.**

All full-time employees of the Village of Mogadore, other than elected officials and Police Department and Fire Department employees shall be entitled to accumulate one and one-quarter (1-1/4) days of sick leave for each month worked. Unused sick leave may be cumulative up to one hundred fifty (150) days. Upon a bona fide retirement with the Public Employee Retirement System of Ohio, or upon disability while an employee of the Village, cash payment of a maximum of seventy-five (75) days shall be compensated to such employee at the option of the Village either as a lump sum or as an early retirement, to be paid in cash along with the general Village payroll.

In order to be entitled to sick leave of over three (3) consecutive days, employees must submit a doctor's certificate attesting to the sickness involved, which must be submitted to the Mayor. The Mayor shall have full authority to investigate such claims for sick leave and allow or disallow the leave, subject to the right of the employee to resubmit his application to the Street Department and in turn the full Council in the event of its disallowance.

The following Sick Leave Bonuses will be made available effective the first pay period in January, based on an employee's attendance in the previous calendar year:

- 1) Taken no sick leave 16 hours pay
- 2) Taken 8 hours or less sick leave 8 hours pay

#### SECTION 10: FUNERAL LEAVE.

An employee who has any one of the following described members of his family die shall be excused from work without loss of pay for not more than three (3) days with the third day being the day of the funeral. Said three (3) days shall include scheduled and non-scheduled working days alike. Said members of the family shall be limited to parents, children, spouse, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, grandparent, great-grandparent, grandchild, great-grandchild, grandparent, and great-grandparent of spouse, or dependent who lives in the household. The above categories of relatives include step-relatives, half relatives, and legally adopted children.

In the application of this clause with respect to in-laws, recognition for any such relationship will be limited to those resulting from the employee's current marital status. Where a marriage has been terminated by death and there has been no subsequent marriage, the in-law relationship will be recognized.

#### SECTION 11: HOLIDAYS.

Each full-time employee shall be paid for the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day.

In order to receive compensation for any of the above holidays, an employee shall be present on the job the workday immediately preceding and immediately following each such legal holiday unless the said employee shall be on a duly authorized vacation. Compensation for hourly-paid employees for said holidays shall be computed for each individual employee on the basis of such employee's most recent hourly rate and on a forty (40) hour week. If any holiday described above, falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the Friday before or the Monday after, shall be a paid holiday for all full-time employees not scheduled normally to work on such a Saturday or Sunday. If the holiday falls within the period of vacation of any employee, such employee shall be entitled to an additional day of vacation for each occurrence.

If an employee is required to work on any of the holidays listed, he shall be entitled to pay for such time at the rate of two times the employee's regular hourly rate.

In addition, each full-time employee shall be paid for four (4) personal days off at regular pay to be taken any day through the year with the Street Supervisors' approval.

#### **SECTION 12: VACATION.**

All full-time employees of the Village, other than elected officials, hired on or after July 1, 1981, shall be entitled to two (2) weeks vacation per year after completion of one (1) year but less than five (5) years of service with the Village; three (3) weeks vacation per year after completion of five (5) years but less than ten years of service, four (4) weeks vacation per year after completion of ten (10) years but less than fifteen (15) years of service with the Village; and five (5) weeks vacation per year after completion of fifteen (15) or more years of service with the Village.

For purposes of this provision, the term Full-time employee shall be an employee who is regularly and normally scheduled to work forty (40) hours per week. Also, for purposes of this provision, a week's vacation is defined as forty (40) hours at a straight time rate. Although the Village shall attempt to accommodate its employees in scheduling vacations, all vacations shall be scheduled at the convenience of the Village.

Any member of the Street Department who is entitled to five (5) weeks of vacation, may at the approval of the Service director select to forego the taking of all but two (2) weeks of vacation and receive an amount commensurate with the vacation earned during this time. The compensation will be paid over pay periods in the year in which the vacation could have been taken. Any member wishing to select this option must give notice of intent in writing to the Mayor by March 1st in the year the member wishes to select the option.

# **SECTION 13: DISABILITY RETIREMENT.**

In the event an employee is separated from Village employment by reason of disability retirement, the employee shall receive payment for any unused portion of the earned vacation, based on rate of pay at the time the employee is removed from the payroll.

In the event, an employee is separated from Village employment by reason of disability retirement the employee shall receive payment for unused accumulated sick days, based on rate of pay at the time the employee is removed from the payroll.

# **SECTION 14: INJURY LEAVE.**

If an employee is absent from work because of an injury received in the line of duty, the employee shall continue to receive a salary which, together with Workmen's Compensation, shall equal his regular pay and for a time equal to the employee's allowed sick leave without such time being charged against his sick leave.

PAGE NO.	0805	

Resolution No.	2024-76	Passed	. 20	24
			,	<u> </u>

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-100 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS FOR THE FULL-TIME ASSISTANT CLERK IN THE VILLAGE'S FINANCE OFFICE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Assistant Clerk in the Village's Finance Office; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Assistant Clerk in the Village's Finance Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: That Section 1 of Resolution No. 2023-100 is hereby amended to state as follows:

The Assistant Clerk in the Finance Office shall be compensated at an annual salary of \$43,680.00 which shall be payable bi-weekly.

SECTION 2: The employment benefits to be provided to the Assistant Clerk in the Finance Office shall be the same as those provided other full-time employees of the Village other than the full-time Police Department and Fire Department employees, with the exception of the uniform allowance.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements

SECTION 5: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for the Assistant Clerk in the Finance Office prior to the effective date, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

PAGE NO.	0806		
----------	------	--	--

Resolution No. 2024-76	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Attest.		
Clerk-Treasurer		

PAGE NO.	0807	
LILOLITO	0007	 

Resolution No.	2024-77	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
----------------	---------	--------	----------------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-101 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED BY THE VILLAGE TO THE FIRE CHIEF, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Fire Chief; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Fire Chief.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: That Section 1 of Resolution 2023-101 shall be amended as follows:

The compensation for the position of full-time Fire Chief shall be \$91,839.14 annually, which shall be payable bi-weekly. In addition, the Fire Chief shall receive an annual clothing and equipment allowance of \$1,500.00.

<u>SECTION 2</u>: The employment benefits to be provided to the full-time Fire Chief shall be the same as those provided other full-time, non-bargaining unit employees of the Village.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 5: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for the Fire Chief prior to the effective date, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

PAGE NO. 080
--------------

Resolution No. 2024-77	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

<b>PAGE</b>	NO.	0809

Resolution No. 2024-78	Passed	, 20_24_
------------------------	--------	----------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FULL-TIME FIREFIGHTER HANDBOOK TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASES IN COMPENSATION FOR FULL-TIME FIREFIGHTERS IN THE VILLAGE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, this Council has previously adopted a Full-Time Firefighter Handbook setting forth the terms and conditions of the employment of full-time firefighters by the Village, including compensation and benefits; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the full-time firefighters of the Village; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to amend the Full-Time Firefighter Handbook to provide for an increase in the compensation of the full-time firefighters of the Village.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: This Council hereby approves and adopts the amended version of the Full-Time Firefighter Handbook attached hereto as Exhibit A, amending Section III(B) thereof, for the purpose of increasing the compensation of the full-time firefighters of the Village.

<u>SECTION 2:</u> This Resolution, and the amended version of the Full-Time Firefighter Handbook, shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: All other ordinances, resolutions, or parts of other ordinances and resolutions which may be in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared null and void and are of no further force and effect.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

	PAGE	NO.	0810		
--	------	-----	------	--	--

Resolution No. 2024-78	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
SECTION 5: This Resolution for the immediate preservation of the purpose of important of Mogadore and for the purpose of important the Village prior to the effective dayote of at least five (5) members electer force upon its passage by Council and a fin force at the earliest period allowed be	mediately establishing the pay for te, and, provided this Resolution d or appointed to this Council, it sl approval by the Mayor, otherwise i	e residents of the Village the full-time firefighters receives the affirmative hall take effect and be in
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:	Mayor	Date

# THE VILLAGE OF MOGADORE FIRE DEPARTMENT

# FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Effective
December 28, 2024
Resolution 2024-78

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	C.	Equal Employment Opportunity			
	D.	Americans with Disabilities Act			
II.	EMPLO	EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES			
	A.	Village/Employer Rights			
	В.	Tobacco Free Zone			
	C	Health and Safety			
	D.	Full-Time Firefighter Job Description			
	E.	Job Assignments			
	F.	Temporary Job Assignments			
	G.	Probationary Period			
	H.	Seniority			
	I.	Personnel Files			
	J.	Performance Evaluations			
	K.	Regular Hours of Work			
	L.	Overtime			
	M.	Layoff and Recall			
	N.	Training			
III.	PAYD.	AYS & PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS			
	A.	Paydays			
	В.	Wages			
	C.	Payroll Deductions			
	D.	Longevity			
	E.	Call-In Pay			
	F.	Clothing and Equipment Allowance (Allowance)			
	G.	The Mogadore Firefighters Association			
	H.	Insurance			

Expense Reimbursement

Expense Reimbursement-Cost Standards

Purpose and Coverage Effective Date of this Handbook

I.

Introduction

A. B.

I. J.

# IV. HOLIDAYS, VACATION, LEAVE & ABSENCES

- A. Holidays
- B. Vacation
- C. Sick Leave
- D. Military Duty
- E. Injury Leave
- F. Leave of Absence
- G. Court Time and Jury Duty
- H. Funeral Leave
- I. Paternal Leave

#### V. HARASSMENT FREE WORKPLACE

- A. Harassment/Bullying
- B. Complaints
- C. Retaliation
- D. False Complaints

# VI. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

A. Employee Rights

# VII. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

- A. Definitions
- B. Procedures
- C. Decision to Screen for Cause
- D. Screening Process
- E. Testing Methodology
- F. Screening Standards
- G. Screen Results
- H. Role of Medical Review Officer
- I. Disciplinary Action and Appeal
- J. Third-Party Administrator
- K. Notice of Education of Employees Regarding Testing
- L. Probationary Employee Drug Testing
- M. Participation in a Treatment Program

**EXHIBIT A:** Job Description-Full-Time Firefighter

**EXHIBIT B:** Employee Handbook Acknowledgment

**EXHIBIT C:** Village of Mogadore Fire Department Sick Leave Donation Program

# I. INTRODUCTION

# A. Purpose and Coverage

The purpose of this Employee Handbook is to set forth personnel policies for the full-time employees of the Village of Mogadore Fire Department. Many of the rights and responsibilities outlined in this Handbook are based on provisions contained in the Villages' Codified Ordinances, Village's Charter and the Ohio Revised Code. When a direct conflict exists between Federal, State, and local law and these policies, Federal, State, and local laws prevail.

The Village cannot foresee all personnel issues and concerns that may arise. The Village of Mogadore reserves the right to revise, modify, amend, or delete any policy, procedure, benefit, or regulation when necessary. An amendment affects only the specific policy it modifies and does not affect the enforceability of the remainder of this Employee Handbook.

Words contained within the Employee Handbook, whether in the masculine or feminine gender, shall be construed to include both genders. The use of the masculine or feminine gender is for convenience only and is not to be construed as discriminatory by reason of sex.

Employees are expected to read, understand, and comply with the guidelines set forth in this handbook. Upon completion, the Employee shall sign the Acknowledgement, attached as Exhibit B, and provide it to the Fire Chief.

In accordance with the FAIR HIRING ACT, the Village has the power to hire, compensate, discipline and discharge employees. The Village adheres to the doctrine of employment "at will", for all employees, unless or except as otherwise modified by applicable statute. Employment with the Village is not offered, contracted, or promised for any specific length of time. Employees voluntarily enter into the employment relationship and are free to terminate their employment at any time — with or without reason. Just as employees are free to terminate their employment at any time with or without a reason, the Village reserves the same right, on the same basis, to terminate their employment.

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS HANDBOOK ARE NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS A PROMISE OF CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT, A GUARANTEE OF INSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESS, OR A COMMITMENT TO EXISTING OR PREVAILING COMPENSATION. THE POLICIES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT THE DISCRETION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

#### B. Effective Date of this Handbook

This handbook replaces all prior effective human resource policies, practices, verbal communications, and written memos that may have been issued on the subjects herein.

# C. Equal Employment Opportunity

The Village of Mogadore Fire Department is an equal opportunity employer. It is the Village's policy to make all employment decisions without regard to a person's creed, political affiliation, race, color, religion, national origin, disability, age, gender, military veteran or disabled veteran, and all other categories protected by Federal and state laws. No appointing authority, supervisor or other employee may discriminate against a person with respect to the terms and conditions of employment.

All full-time fire department employees shall be treated fairly and equitably based on the person's merit, fitness, and occupational qualifications.

The "Complaints," "Retaliation," and "False Complaints" sections of the Village Harassment Free workplace policy set forth below shall apply with equal force and effect to the Village of Mogadore Equal Employment Opportunity policy.

#### D. Americans with Disabilities Act

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. \*\* 12101 et seq. prohibits discrimination in hiring, promotions, transfers or any other benefits or privilege of employment of any qualified individual with a disability. To be considered a qualified individual, the employee must satisfy the required skills, experience, education, and other job-related requirements of the position held or desired and must be able to perform the essential functions of the position, with or without a reasonable accommodation. The Village shall reasonably accommodate a qualified employee with a disability unless the accommodation would pose an undue hardship to the Village. Decisions as to whether an accommodation is reasonable shall be made on a case-by-case basis. Employees who believe they are in need of a reasonable accommodation are responsible for making their supervisor aware of this need.

The "Complaints," "Retaliation," and "False Complaints" sections of the Village's Harassment Free Workplace policy, as set forth below, shall apply with equal force and effect to this ADA policy.

The Village shall not accommodate a full-time fire fighter's use of medical marijuana as part of an approved treatment for any qualifying conditions as defined in Section 3796.01 of the Ohio Revised Code.

#### II. EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

#### A. Village/Employer Rights

Except as expressly limited in this Handbook or the Village's Codified Ordinances and Charter, the Village shall have and shall maintain the exclusive right to administer the business of the Fire Department in addition to all other functions and responsibilities which are required by law. It is understood that such management rights include, but are not limited to, the following: The right to determine matters of inherent managerial policy which include, but are not limited to areas of discretion or policy such as the functions and programs of the employer standards of service, its overall budget, utilization of technology, and organizational structure;

- The right to direct, supervise, evaluate and hire employees;
- The right to suspend, discipline, demote or discharge for just cause, or layoff due to lack of work or lack of funds, transfer, assign, schedule, promote, or retain employees;
- The right to promulgate reasonable rules, regulations and directives;
- The right to maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the department;
- Any and all other duties as directed by the Chief or his designee;
- The right to determine the overall methods, process, means, or personnel by which governmental operations are to be conducted;
- The right to determine the adequacy of the workforce;
- The right to determine the overall mission of the employer as a unit of the government;
- The right to effectively manage the workforce; and
- The right to take action to carry out the mission of the public employer as a governmental unit.

#### B. Tobacco Free Zone

The Village of Mogadore is a tobacco free zone. There is no smoking or use of any type of tobacco or tobacco related products on Village property.

# C. Health and Safety

Safety must be a prime concern and responsibility of both parties. Therefore, both parties accept the responsibility to attempt to provide safe working conditions and establish safe working practices for their employees.

The employee(s) accepts the responsibility to maintain their tools, equipment and work area in a safe and proper manner and accepts the responsibility to follow all safety rules and safe working methods of the Employer.

# D. Full-Time Firefighter Job Description

See Exhibit A to this Employee Handbook.

# E. Job Assignments

Employees are expected to perform the specific duties set forth in their job descriptions as well as any other duties assigned by their supervisor. All employees shall be required to perform any and all temporarily assigned duties for which they are capable, regardless of their usual or customary duties or job assignments.

# F. Temporary Job Assignments

A temporary assignment may be used:

- To fill a vacancy caused by an employee's absence due to sick leave or other approved leave of absence;
- To provide vacation relief scheduling;
- To meet an emergency situation
- To fill an open position, pending appointment;
- To replace an employee who is temporarily incapacitated from working; and
- For any other reason as determined by the Fire Chief or Mayor.

An employee temporarily assigned to substitute in a different job classification with a <u>lower</u> rate of pay shall receive the regular rate of pay as his normal assignment.

An employee temporarily assigned to a position with a <u>higher</u> rate of pay shall receive the rate of pay corresponding to the temporary assignment.

# G. Probationary Period

Every new full-time employee will be required to complete a one (1) year probationary period. The probationary period for new full-time employees shall begin on the employee's date of hire. A newly hired, probationary full-time employee may be terminated during their probationary period without advanced notice and without cause. The probationary full-time employee shall have no appeal over such removal. Probationary employees will be given a written performance review after four (4), eight (8) and eleven (11) months for a total of three reviews.

#### H. Seniority

Seniority is defined as the length of time a full-time employee has been continuously employed by the Village, using the calculations for village service time that is utilized by the Police and Fireman's Disability and Pension Fund. For determining the position of Shift Lead all continuous Part Time Employment with the Mogadore Fire Department shall be counted towards the shift lead position only.

An employee shall automatically lose all their seniority when one or more of the following occur;

- 1. The employee resigns, quits, or retires;
- 2. They are terminated for just cause;
- 3. They are laid off for a period exceeding eighteen (18) months; or,
- 4. They fail to report to work within ten (10) working days upon receipt of a recall notice sent by the Employer.

#### I. Personnel Files

It is recognized by the parties that the Employer may establish regulations for the custody, use, and preservation of the records, papers, books, documents, and property pertaining to the employer or their employees. Employees may request to view their personnel files in accordance with Ohio Revised Code 149.43. Such examination shall be made on non-work time or at some other mutually agreed upon time.

Personnel files are public records as defined by ORC 149.43, except as otherwise protected by Ohio Law. Records are maintained in the Fire Chief's Office and shall be released in accordance with the policies of the Village of Mogadore and the law. Pursuant to current law, all medical records shall be maintained in a separate file and are not considered to be public records.

Employees are not permitted to alter, add or remove documents or other information contained in their personnel files without written authorization from the Mayor. If an employee has reason to believe there are inaccuracies in documents contained in the personnel file, the employee may write a memorandum or letter explaining their position, and have the letter or memo attached to the documents in question. An employee who alters, adds, or removes documents of information from his personnel file, without prior approval, may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

Employee personnel files shall include but may not be limited to individual employment data, payroll information, work time schedules, records of additions or deductions paid, application forms, records pertaining to hiring, promotion, demotion, transfer, layoff, and termination.

Nothing herein shall prevent the dissemination of impersonal statistical information.

Any record of discipline in excess of Two (2) years old shall be removed from the employee's personnel file. After removal from the employees' personnel file said records may be maintained by the Employer consistent with law and policy however shall be maintained separate and apart from the employee's personnel file.

#### J. Performance Evaluations

All full-time, non-probationary employees shall be evaluated at least once each calendar year, thereafter. The employee's supervisor shall review and discuss the performance evaluation with each of his employees. The employee shall sign a copy of the performance evaluation, acknowledging that a review was conducted. The employee shall receive a copy of the performance evaluation; and if he chooses, may submit a separate written response, which will be attached to the evaluation and placed in employee's personnel file.

# K. Regular Hours of Work

The standard work period for all full-time employees covered by the terms of this agreement shall be 48-hour average work week in a 28-day cycle. This shall commence on a Saturday at 12:00 a.m. and end on a Friday at 11:59 p.m. This shall not constitute a guaranteed workday.

The standard workday shall be Twenty-Four (24) hours. Starting at 0800 hours and ending at 0759 the next morning.

Days of work and hours of work shall not be changed to avoid the payment of overtime unless mutually agreed upon by the Employer and the employee.

#### L. Overtime

Employees become eligible for overtime compensation when they work in excess of the standard, scheduled number of hours appropriate for their position and work schedule. Overtime shall be paid at time and one half (1.5) their hourly rate of pay.

A. Emergency alarms and court time that is outside of an employee's work schedule will be paid a minimum of two (2) hours or actual time worked at 1.5 time their hourly rate of pay. However, being asked to stay over beyond one's scheduled end of their work schedule, or, being asked to come in one (1) hour early, shall not qualify for a 2-hour minimum. Further, if any employee signs out early before being released, they shall be paid for only the actual time worked.

- B. When an on-duty employee is relieved by an on-coming crew employee prior to the end of their normally scheduled shift and a call for service is requested. The employee shall not qualify for the 2-hour minimum should the request for service initiate a general alarm. The employee shall be compensated for actual time worked at 1.5 time their hourly rate to the next quarter hour until the emergency alarm is terminated.
- C. When an employee arrives early for a shift due to a call, they shall be paid for the worked and shall not qualify for the 2-hour minimum.
- D. Schedule trades shall not be allowed when such trades result in the Fire Department being required to pay overtime.
- E. A full-time employee who works more than their normal workday or week may elect to receive pay or compensatory time in lieu of paid overtime. Compensatory time shall be earned at the rate of one and one- half (1 ½) times the time worked. If an employee elects to earn compensatory time, it shall be placed in a "comp bank" for use as future time off, not to exceed a maximum accumulation of 120 hours per employee. In the event an employee reaches the 120-hour maximum any overtime earned thereafter shall be paid. The 120-hour bank shall be a revolving bank in which as compensatory hours are used, they can be earned again to the established maximum.
- F. Each employee shall be responsible for designating, in writing to the Employer, their election of pay or compensatory time for overtime at the conclusion of the time worked.
- G. Compensatory time cannot be used as time off during the same pay period in which is accrued. The Employee must turn in their election between pay or compensatory time by 1800 hours the first Sunday following the close of the pay period in which the time was earned. Failure of an employee to so designate will result in a default payment of overtime. Compensatory time off may be granted with at least twenty-four (24) hour prior notice to, and approval of, the Chief of Fire or their designee. Failure of an Employee to so request shall result in the denial of the request for compensatory time use; vacation, sick and/or personal time shall be administered according to their own procedures. All remaining compensatory time for a deceased employee shall be paid to the employee's spouse or, if unmarried, to their designated beneficiary.

Except as otherwise provided, compensatory time shall only be paid quarterly and only so long as a request for payment has been submitted by the Employee at least one (1) week prior to the end of the last full pay period in May, August, November, or February. Such payments shall be made with the first pay period of June, September, December, or March.

# M. Layoff and Recall

When the Employer determines that a layoff is necessary due to lack of work or lack of funds, the Employer shall notify the effected employee(s) at least fourteen (14) days in advance of the effective date of layoff.

Layoffs shall be made in order of Seniority, with the most junior full-time employee to be laid off first, up to the number of employees to be laid off.

Employees who are laid off shall be placed on a recall list for a period of eighteen (18) months. If there is a recall, employees who are still on the recall list shall be recalled in the inverse order of their layoff.

Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee(s) by registered mail. Employer shall have been deemed to have fulfilled its obligation by mailing the recall notice by registered mail, return receipt requested, to the last mailing address of the employee.

The recalled employee shall have ten (10) calendar days following the date of the receipt of the recall notice to notify the Employer of the employee's intention to return to work.

# N. Training

The Chief shall formulate a training policy to strengthen and uphold the level of professionalism within the Village of Mogadore Fire Department.

Training will be provided to all employees based on the Chiefs recommendations.

The Village shall provide for tuition reimbursement for one (1) class per semester with respect to Fire/EMS related course work completed. To qualify, an employee must secure advanced approval by the Chief. Upon successful completion of the course proof of payment and proof of grade must be submitted to the chief before reimbursement may occur. Reimbursement will be for tuition, books and necessary materials required for the course. Reimbursement shall be made on the following basis:

<u>Grade</u>	Percentage
A	100%
В	80%
C	60%
D	0%
F	0%

#### III. PAYDAYS & PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

# A. Paydays

Paychecks shall be issued bi-weekly.

#### B. Wages

Effective December 28, 2024, the starting hourly rate for any full-time employee with less than one full year of service with the Village shall be Twenty-two and 16/100 Dollars (\$22.16) per hour (\$55,311.36 annually), the starting hourly rate for a full-time employee with more than one, but less than two years of service with the Village shall be Twenty-two and 94/100 Dollars (\$22.94) per hour (\$57,258.24 annually), and the starting hourly rate for all other full-time employees shall be Twenty-three and 74/100 Dollars (\$23.74) per hour (\$59,255.04 annually).

# C. Payroll Deductions

Deductions are made from an employee's paycheck as required by law, in accordance with the employee benefit plan, or as requested by the employee. These deductions are itemized on the employee's pay statement.

# D. Longevity

On the first day of a new pay period following a full-time employee's completion of four, nine, fourteen, nineteen and twenty-four years of service with the Village of Mogadore Fire Department, said full-time employee shall be entitled to, in addition to current base salary, an amount equal to one, two, three, four, and five percent respectively of the current base salary. Said monies will be paid on an ongoing basis to coincide with regular pay periods.

# E. Call-In Pay

A member who is called in to work during any time falling outside of the members previously scheduled shift, shall be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours at their appropriate rate of pay.

# F. Clothing and Equipment Allowance (Allowance)

All full-time employees shall receive a cash clothing and equipment allowance of One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$1,250.00) each year. Employees shall receive their annual clothing allowance during the pay period falling on their anniversary date.

Dentures, watches, optics or clothing and equipment items that are damaged or ruined while performing Fire duties shall be replaced by the Employer. Such replacement shall be made upon the approval of the Chief.

New hires shall be provided with the current annual clothing/equipment allowance. If the new hire fails to complete his/her first full year of employment with the Fire Department, the employee is required to reimburse the Village One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) for each month remaining in that first year when their employment with the Village ends. For example, if the new hire works only six months, then the employee must reimburse the Village Six Hundred Dollars (\$600.00) of the received Allowance.

Station Uniforms shall consist of the following:

- 1. Full time personnel that are working on shift shall wear an approved Mogadore Fire Department uniform as described below.
  - a. Class B uniform shall consist of Navy colored Workrite shirt. Mogadore Department patch on left upper arm, either metal or embroidered badge over left breast pocket and name plate over right pocket. Silver badge and name plate for firefighters and gold for officers. Pants shall be Workrite Navy in color. black belt, black socks, and black work shoes/boots.
  - b. Class C uniform shall consist of Navy colored Workrite pants with Mogadore Fire Department approved Navy Tee shirt, Sweatshirt, or Duty Shirt. These shall be worn with black belt, black socks and black shoes/boots.
- 2. Personnel shall be in uniform within 15 minutes of start of shift.
- 3. In case of a fire or messy call, while on duty, coveralls shall be provided to change into after your shower.
- 4. Navy Work Shorts may be worn during the months of May September with the approved shirts.
- 5. Full time employees shall obtain a Class A Uniform as listed per policy, within completion of year 2.

Class B uniform shall be worn for public presentations, council meetings, or any other time as directed by the Chief.

# G. The Mogadore Firefighters Association

All full-time employees of the Village Fire Department shall be members of the Mogadore Firefighters Association. As a term of employment, the full-time employee will be required to sign an authorization allowing the Village to deduct the dues for the Mogadore Firefighters Association, all subject to State and Federal laws.

Previously signed authorizations shall continue to be effective until revoked in writing,

Dues deductions shall be made on a monthly basis, and paid to the Association, with the Employer providing a list of those employees for whom dues deductions have been made.

The Association and the full-time firefighters shall indemnify and hold the Village/ Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that arise out of by reason of action taken or not taken by the Employer for purposes of complying with any of the provisions of this subsection.

#### H. Insurance

The Employer will provide insurance on behalf of each full-time employee and eligible dependents for hospitalization, medical, optical, and dental insurance. Monthly premium payroll deductions will be at the same rate as all other full-time Village of Mogadore Employees.

Village/Employee Contributions.

#### A. Health Insurance.

- 1. Employees shall pay the following health insurance premium contributions:
  - (a) 10% of non-Health Savings Account (HSA) health insurance premiums; and,
  - (b) 5% of HSA plan premiums.
- 2. The employee's contribution toward the health insurance premium shall be deducted from pre-tax dollars from the employee's paycheck pursuant to a Section 125 Plan, subject to IRS regulations.

#### B. Dental/Vision Insurance.

1. The Village shall pay the dental and vision insurance premiums.

Insurance coverage shall be also provided for the surviving spouse and/or eligible children of a deceased employee for a period of three (3) months after death.

The Employer will provide and pay the full premium for all full-time employees for a life insurance policy in the face of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00)

HSAs. If Health Savings Accounts (HSAs) are offered, the Village will fund a participating employee's HSA at the following levels: \$400 for single/\$800 for family.

Employees who are eligible for health care may "opt-out" at their election and will receive payment of one hundred (\$100) dollars per month.

# I. Expense Reimbursement

Permission to travel on Village business is documented by completing a Travel Expense Report. The Travel Expense Report is to be completed and approved <u>in advance</u>. Travel may be approved after it has taken place only if "there are unusual and extenuating circumstances of an emergency nature". Anyone traveling without an approved Travel Expense Report does so at the risk of being denied reimbursement of expenses. The attached request for estimated expenses shall be utilized for all travel and reimbursement of expenses.

(See Attachment D - Travel Expense Report - Request for Estimated Expenses)

# J. Expense Reimbursement - Cost Standards

#### 1. Transportation

- a. Travel by air, rail, or bus must be at the lowest and best available rate. Per the Ohio Ethics Commission Advisory Opinion No. 91-010 indicates that employees of a government should not accept, solicit, or use the authority or influence of their position to secure, for personal travel, a discounted or free "frequent flyer" airline ticket or other benefit from an airline if the ticket or other benefit was obtained from the purchase of airline tickets used for official Village travel. It is the policy of the Village of Mogadore that it prohibits the accumulation of "frequent flyer" miles by employees earned on official Village travel which is paid for or reimbursed by the Village or requires employees to use such miles earned for future official Village of Mogadore travel.
- b. Tickets for transportation should not be purchased/ordered until the Travel Expense Report has been approved. Tickets purchased without Travel Expense Report approval are the employee's risk. Tickets lost or stolen are the liability of the employee authorized to travel and the cost must be reimbursed to the Village of Mogadore. Any airline tickets purchased by the Village of Mogadore and canceled at the employees request and not reused within one year must be reimbursed by the employee.

- c. Employees are encouraged to carpool whenever possible. Mileage is payable to only one (1) of the two (2) or more employees traveling on the same trip in the same vehicle.
- d. Village of Mogadore vehicle(s): If the department has a Village car, it should be made available to the traveling employee to reduce Village expenses even if it is necessary to temporarily reassign the car for the traveling employee's use. Employees may be reimbursed for fuel or repair expenses incurred while driving a Village vehicle. Receipts must be turned in with the Travel Expense Report.
- e. Private vehicle: When using a private vehicle, the employee is reimbursed at the current IRS rate. Any gasoline, damages, needed service, or repairs to private vehicles are the responsibility of the employee, as these costs are included in the per-mile cost reimbursement. Mileage reimbursement is calculated from the work reporting location to the destination, not from the employee's home. The vehicle "shall be insured by the owner and the owner shall save and hold harmless the Village of Mogadore from any and all claims arising from such use. The limit on private vehicle mileage distance one way shall not exceed three hundred (300) miles unless otherwise approved by the Village of Mogadore. If an employee requests to drive when airfare is feasible, they will be reimbursed the amount which is the lesser of travel by air or private vehicle, not to exceed mileage of three hundred (300) miles one way.
- f. Rental cars are approved only when there are extenuating circumstances. Requests for rental cars must be on the Travel Expense Report with an explanation of why one is necessary.

#### 2. Hotel Accommodations

- a. Overnight stays in adjoining counties (Cuyahoga, Portage, Stark, Wayne, and Medina) require prior approval from the Village of Mogadore.
- b. Employees are reimbursed at the single room rate. If a spouse or guest is sharing the room with the Village of Mogadore employee, the employee is only reimbursed at the single room rate.
- c. A detailed original billing showing payment must be submitted with the Travel Expense Report. Telephone calls of a business nature must be identified for reimbursement.
- d. Hotel reservations must be made in the name of The Village of Mogadore (on behalf of the employee) and paid with a village check. If this policy is not followed the Village of Mogadore will not reimburse the State sales tax.

#### 3. Meals

- a. Meals are reimbursed at a per diem rate. Receipts are required for meals. Alcohol or tobacco expenses will not be reimbursed by the Village.
- b. Employees are not reimbursed for meals that are included in the cost of the conference. An itemization of what the registration fee includes must accompany the Travel Expense Report. This itemization should include meals.

# IV. HOLIDAYS, VACATION, LEAVE & ABSENCES

#### A. Holidays

On December 1st of each year, each full-time employee shall receive a cash (check), for 8 hours per holiday, payment for the following holidays so long as they were an employee of the Village on such holiday:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth

July 4<sup>th</sup>
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving.

Upon termination, each employee shall be paid for each of the foregoing holidays during the preceding calendar year during which they were employed (up to the date of termination). Each employee receiving a payment on December 1st of each year shall also receive holiday pay for Christmas Eve and Christmas Day despite the fact the holiday has not yet transpired.

In addition, each full-time employee shall be paid for a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours of personal leave at regular pay, to be taken any time through the year with the Fire Chief's approval. This personal time shall be calculated by the hour as opposed to being calculated by the day. All remaining personal time of a deceased employee shall be paid to the employee's spouse or, if unmarried, to their designated beneficiary. All unused personal leave in existence at the end of the year (December 31<sup>st</sup>) shall be forfeited by the employee.

If an employee is required to work on any of the holidays listed in Section 1, above, they shall be entitled to pay for such time worked at one and one-half (1 1/2) times their regular base rate of pay. In the event these hours worked would otherwise be considered overtime, the employee's rate of pay remains one and one-half (1 ½) times their regular base rate of pay.

# **B.** Vacation

Full-time employees are entitled to vacation with pay after (1) year of continuous service with the Village of Mogadore Fire Department. The amount of vacation leave, to which an employee is entitled is based upon length of service as follows:

Length of Service	Vacation
1 year but less than 5 years	96 hours
5 years but less than 10 years	144 hours
10 years but less than 15 years	192 hours
15 years but less than 20 years	240 hours
20 + years	288 hours

Employees will receive their full allowance of vacation hours on their anniversary date of hire. Employees shall schedule vacations by seniority prior to March 1<sup>st</sup> of the year of entitlement. Only one full-time employee may be on vacation at a time. Any vacation time left unscheduled after March 1<sup>st</sup> shall be scheduled on a first come, first serve basis. Employees shall be permitted to carry over 96 hours of unused vacation each year.

Each employee who is entitled to 240 hours of vacation, may at the approval of the Chief, select to forego the taking of all but 96 hours of vacation and receive an amount commensurate with the vacation earned during this time. This compensation will be paid over pay periods in the year in which the vacation could have been taken by the employee. An employee wishing to select this option must give notice of intent to select the option to the Chief by no later than March 1<sup>st</sup> in the year the employee wishes to select the option.

Employees who terminate their employment with another political subdivision to take a full-time position with the Village of Mogadore Fire Department may, at the discretion of the Director of Public Service and Fire Chief, transfer any unused balance of vacation up to 144 hours from his or her previous position to the Village, pursuant to the applicable sections of the Ohio Revised Code. It is the employee's responsibility to furnish a written statement from the previous employer certifying the termination date and the total transferrable accumulated vacation balance upon termination.

#### C. Sick Leave

Full-time Employees shall earn sick leave at the rate of 4.6 hours per pay to a limit of one hundred twenty (120) hours per year. Each full calendar month of service shall be deemed a completed month of service.

Unused sick leave for regular full-time employees may be cumulative up to Two Thousand (2,000) Hours.

Employees absent from work on authorized holidays, sick leave, vacation leave, or on special leave of absence with pay, shall continue to accumulate sick leave at the rate prescribed in Section 1 above, except that the period of accumulation shall not exceed six (6) months.

An employee eligible for sick leave with pay may use sick leave for physician's appointments for said employee or an employee of the employee's immediate family, for absence due to personal illness, injury, exposure to contagious diseases which could be communicated to other employees, and illness or injury in the employee's immediate family.

Immediate family for purposes of Section 4 shall include spouse, children, or parents. Sick leave used for the employee's immediate family under Section 4, above shall not exceed more than ten (10) days per occurrence without the approval of the Chief.

When an employee is unable to work, they shall notify the immediate supervisor no later than one (1) hour before the time the employee is scheduled to report to work.

Proof of illness, or injury to substantiate a request for sick leave pay may be requested by the Chief or their designee after two (2) consecutive days of absence or, in the judgment of the Chief or their designee, such proof is necessary, due to a pattern of undocumented sick leave that suggests an abuse of the sick leave policy.

Sick leave shall be charged in minimum units of one (1) hour.

After conclusion of your first year, the following Sick Leave Bonuses will be made available effective the first pay period in January, based on an employee's attendance in the previous calendar year:

- 1) Taken no sick leave 24 hours pay
- 2) Taken 8 hours or less sick leave 12 hours pay

In accordance with the following paragraph, full-time employees, with ten (10) or more years of service with the Village, who retire, or are disabled from employment, will at the time of retirement or separation be paid in cash for any unused sick leave the employee may have accrued.

Participation the DROP Program does not constitute retirement under this Section.

The Employee will be paid for accrued sick leave, a cash sum not to exceed One Thousand Hours (1,000 hours). At the employer's discretion, the Employee may be paid on a bi-weekly basis for any sick leave the employee may have accrued.

Employees shall be permitted to participate in the Village of Mogadore Fire Department Sick Leave Donation Program, attached hereto as Exhibit C.

# D. Military Duty

Full-time Employees shall be entitled to receive all benefits mandated by federal and/or state law for the military service they perform.

# E. Injury Leave

In the event of a service-connected injury or illness incurred in the active discharge of duty, a full-time employee may receive full pay for a period of time not to exceed one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the date of injury. The Employer may grant additional injury leave on a case-by-case basis for such additional period as the injury may warrant. Upon approval of the injury claim by Worker's Compensation, the employee shall pay to the Employer all income benefits paid by Worker's Compensation for the period during which the employee received full pay.

To apply for sick leave, written application shall be made to the Mayor, or his designee, accompanied by a certificate from a registered physician stating that such employee is unable to work and such disability is a result of or is connected with the duties of such employee. It shall be the duty of the Village to approve or reject the application, and in doing so, they may require an examination by a registered physician of their selection. Said examination shall be paid by the Village. Approval of such injury leave request shall not be unreasonably denied.

Before any employee, who has made application to the Village for sick leave, the employee shall first make application for Worker's Compensation benefits. The employee must also complete an Injury-On-Duty report and reimbursement agreement with the Employer as soon as possible following the injury.

In the event such Injury-On-Duty is disallowed by the Bureau of Worker's Compensation or the Industrial Commission of Ohio, the employee shall be charged with all-time lost from work against their accumulated sick leave, or at the employee's option, the benefits shall be repaid in cash, vacation leave, and/or any paid leave. If the employee does not have accumulated sick leave or accumulated vacation leave to rover all or part of the time off up to and including the date the claim is disallowed, then any monies paid to the employee by the Village under this Article, shall be repaid by the employee to the Employer under agreed upon and reasonable terms.

#### F. Leave of Absence

The Employer may grant temporary leave without pay for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days per calendar year upon request in writing of an employee and for good cause shown and such request will not be unreasonably denied.

An employee who is unable to work due to sickness, injury, or illness, who has exhausted all available leave shall be granted leave without pay for up to one (1) year if requested in writing. When an employee who has been granted leave is approved by the Mayor as being physically and mentally able to perform their duties, they shall be returned to their former rank and position with their seniority as of the date the leave was granted.

# G. Court Time and Jury Duty

If it is necessary for an employee to appear in court during their scheduled time off, they shall be compensated for a minimum of two (2) hours and be paid time-and- half based on their base rate of pay, plus allowed mileage and parking fees if driving their own vehicle.

When an employee has received notice that they are required to "check in" on a daily basis for potential jury duty, then it becomes that members responsibility to notify their supervising officer by 5:00 p.m. the same day of receipt of notification of jury duty, as to whether they must report the next morning for jury duty. Should the need arise for a member to report to jury duty, then the supervising officer shall ensure that the reporting member will not be scheduled to work a shift within the same 24-hour period of completion of said jury duty.

#### H. Funeral Leave

Full-time employees shall be entitled to up to twenty four (24) hours paid funeral/bereavement leave to attend the funeral of any of the following individuals related to the employee: Employee's spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandparents-in-law, grandchildren, siblings, mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, legal guardian, aunt, uncle, or a person who is the legal responsibility of the Employee (i.e. a foster child). This definition also includes adopted children, stepchildren, and stepparents.

Employees attending the funeral or said named individuals, when the funeral is more than one hundred (100) miles from Summit County, shall be entitled to up to 48 hours paid days of funeral leave

# I. Paternal Leave

Full-time employees may be entitled to up to twelve (12) weeks of parental leave for the care of a child, to be taken in one increment at any time within 1 year after the birth or adoption of the employee's child.

In the first six (6) weeks of the parental leave, the employee shall exhaust all accrued vacation time, compensatory time, sick leave time and/or personal time. Upon the exhaustion of all such paid leave, the employee may be entitled to two (2) weeks of paid leave so long as the total paid leave does not extend beyond the six (6) weeks.

Upon the expiration of the paid two (2) week leave, the employee may use any remaining time as afforded under the Family Medical Leave Act, which will result in six (6) weeks or more of the twelve (12) weeks leave will be unpaid leave.

Upon return to service following parental leave, the Village will reinstate the employee to his full former position which includes but is not limited to any benefits that may have been accrued in the interim. The employee shall continue to accrue seniority while on parental leave.

#### V. HARASSMENT FREE WORKPLACE

It is the policy of the Village to provide its employees with an environment free of discrimination, including sexual and other unlawful harassment or bullying. Harassment interferes with the well-being and productivity of employees and the efficiency of the Village, negatively affecting morale, motivation and job performance. The Village is committed to eliminating this inappropriate behavior and has established the following policy.

# A. Harassment/Bullying

Harassment is any unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical, or visual, that is based upon a person's sex, color, race, ancestry, religion, national origin, age, disability, military status, or other protected group status. It also includes, but is not limited to, conduct that demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual because of his status and/or relatives or associates.

Offensive and unwelcome sexual behavior has no place in the work environment. Unwelcome sexual comments, gestures, and jokes are prohibited. Prohibited conduct also includes, but is not limited to, suggestions, leering, pats, squeezes, or other similar contact, posting of sexual pictures, cartoons, photos, or other graphics in the workplace or on personal clothing. Sexual harassment is a violation of Federal and State laws.

Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

- a. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition of employment;
- b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as a basis for employment;
- c. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.

- d. Bullying is defined as "Any actual or threatened physical, verbal or nonverbal abuse occurring either inside or outside of the organization that can create an internal atmosphere where administration or management believes the reasonable person in the community would feel intimidated or threatened to the point they would not be able to function properly".
- e. Both harassment and bullying are destructive to the Village. Therefore, it is everyone's responsibility to ensure that such disruptive behavior is addressed when it occurs.

# B. Complaints

An employee, who is involved in, observes or experiences harassment of any kind by a fellow employee, supervisor, or other individual otherwise affiliated with the Village including delivery persons or vendors is encouraged to inform the alleged harasser of the unwelcome or offensive conduct. The employee must also immediately report the harassment to his supervisor or the Mayor. The incident will be investigated, which may include private interviews with the complainant, the alleged harasser and any and all witnesses. Information will be kept as confidential as possible. All employees are required to cooperate in any investigation of a harassment complaint. When the investigation determines that this policy has been violated, prompt attention and disciplinary action designed to stop the harassment and prevent its recurrence will be taken. This may include discipline up to and including discharge of any person whose conduct is in violation of this policy. Any employee who has knowledge of harassing conduct, and who allows the conduct to go un-addressed, may also be subjected to disciplinary action.

Late reporting of complaints will not, in and of itself, preclude the Village from taking remedial action. However, so that a thorough and accurate investigation may be conducted, employees are encouraged to report complaints promptly.

#### C. Retaliation

Retaliation against an individual for filing a complaint, reporting harassment or bullying participating in an investigation is in violation of this policy. Any employee who believes that he has been subjected to retaliatory conduct as a result of actions taken under this policy must report such conduct to his supervisor or the Mayor. Any person found to have retaliated against an individual for engaging in activity protected by this policy, will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

#### D. False Complaints

Although legitimate complaints made in good faith are strongly encouraged, false complaints made in bad faith will not be tolerated. Failure to prove a violation of this policy will not constitute a false complaint without further evidence of bad faith. False complaints are considered a violation of this policy and an employee who intentionally makes a false complaint will be subject to disciplinary action.

#### VI. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

#### A. Employee Rights

An employee has the right to the presence and advice of a representative or at all disciplinary hearings and/or disciplinary interrogations.

An employee who is to be questioned as a suspect in any investigation of any criminal charge against them shall be advised of their constitutional rights before any questioning starts.

Before an employee may be charged with any violation of the Rules and Regulations for a refusal to answer questions or participate in an investigation, they shall be advised that their refusal to answer such questions or participate in such investigation will be the basis of such a charge.

Questioning or interviews of an employee during an internal investigation will be conducted at hours reasonably related to the employee's shift unless operational necessities require otherwise. Interrogation sessions shall be for reasonable periods of time and time shall be provided for rest periods and attendance to physical necessities.

An employee will be informed of the nature of any investigation of himself prior to any questioning. If the employee being questioned is, at that time, a witness and not under investigation, they shall so be advised.

With respect to investigations which may result in criminal charges, a formal charge of misconduct shall be prepared in writing stating the matters which are under investigation and the charges which are being considered. If, during an investigation this is determined, the final written notice will be prepared and delivered to the employee.

During an internal affairs investigation, a polygraph examination will be administered only with the consent of the employee under investigation. If, during an internal investigation, the employee has been given a polygraph examination, such examination shall not be used in any subsequent court action without prior written agreement of the parties.

All complaints by civilians which may involve discipline of an employee shall be in writing and signed by the complainant. The Employer shall furnish a copy of the complaint to the employee whom the complaint has been filed against when such employee is notified of the investigation.

Upon completion of the investigation of any complaint, the file containing said complaint shall be stamped with one of the following designations:

"Unsubstantiated-No Disciplinary Action Taken" "Substantiated-Disciplinary Action Taken" "Substantiated-No Disciplinary Action Taken"

# 1. Rights

- a. No non-probationary full-time firefighter shall be reduced in pay or position, suspended, removed or reprimanded except for just cause.
- b. The Employee who is being disciplined shall receive a copy of all disciplinary notices immediately upon issuance through the mailbox and via the employee's email address on file.
- c. The Chief shall conduct an interview concerning any discipline issued with the individual who is the subject of the discipline, upon the request of that individual

#### 2. Departmental Hearings

- a. Prior to any departmental hearing of a full—time firefighter, he will receive from the Fire Chief or his designee, a written statement of all charges and specifications. At the hearing, the full-time firefighter who is the charged party will be allowed to be represented and will be allowed to call witnesses material to his defense. The charged party shall have the opportunity to confront and cross-examine his accuser. For any alleged offense for which suspension or dismissal is contemplated, the part-time firefighter has the right to a hearing with representation.
- b. The charged party or his representative may make a written request for a continuance. Such request will be granted where practical. The length of such continuance shall be mutually agreed upon whenever possible.
- c. The Village will make all good faith efforts to notify the charged party of any charges or of any decision reached as a result of a departmental hearing prior to any public statement.

#### 3. Progressive Action

Where appropriate and subject to the discretion of the Village, the principles of progressive disciplinary action will be followed. The progression will at least include: 1) a documented oral reprimand; 2) then a written reprimand; 3) then a demotion and/or a suspension for the same or related offense, prior to a dismissal.

Should the Employer determine to invoke summary discharge, the burden of proof will be on it to show with clear and convincing evidence that the seriousness of the offense outweighed the obligation to apply the provisions of the above discipline procedure.

#### 4. Duration of Records

All actions, except documented oral reprimands (written reprimands, suspensions or dismissal) will be maintained in each bargaining unit employee's personnel file throughout their period of employment with the exception that any record of written reprimands will be removed from their file upon the written request of the employee, two (2) years after such reprimand was given if no further disciplinary action has occurred. Written reprimands so removed from a personnel file shall be given to the part-time firefighter along with their letter of request for such removal. In any case in which a written reprimand, suspension, or dismissal is disaffirmed through the grievance procedures or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the personnel records shall clearly indicate such disaffirmance. In addition, unsubstantiated or unproven allegations or complaints of misconduct made against a part time firefighter and appearing in the department files shall not be considered in future disciplinary action or promotional considerations and shall not be shared outside the department.

#### VII. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

The Employer and the employees recognize their obligation to provide a safe and efficient workplace and service to the public. Substance abuse poses a direct threat to the public safety and welfare and to the employees of the Fire Department. The goal of this program is, therefore, to provide Fire Department employees who are free from the effects of drugs to ensure the safety to the public as well as the safety of employees.

Public trust and confidence in the integrity of the Fire Department is also threatened by suspicion of employee drug use. Finally, employee drug use impacts potential departmental civil liability. This drug-screening program ideally will serve to detect and deter prohibited drug use by firefighters and thereby ensure the integrity of the Fire Department and preserve public trust.

With these objectives in mind, the following policy and procedures on drug abuse have been established.

#### 1. Legal Drugs

Employees shall not use any legal drug to the extent that said drug may adversely affect the employee's safety or job performance or the safety of others. It is the responsibility of the employee to ensure that they do not violate this requirement. Employees should inform their physicians of their participation in a drug testing program so the physician can adjust medications that will not interfere with their job.

#### 2. Illegal Drugs

The illegal possession, sale purchase or use of any controlled substance is prohibited whether on or off duty. Employees shall not report to work or be on duty with an illegal drug traceable in their systems.

#### A. Definitions

For purposes of this drug screening policy, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

- 1. "Illegal drug" means any controlled substance as defined in Ohio Revised Code Section including, but not limited to, Section 3719.Ol(D), the possession or sale of which is prohibited by law.
- 2. "Illegal drug usage" includes the use of cannabis or any other controlled substance, which has not been legally prescribed and/or dispensed, or the abusive use of a legally prescribed drug.
- 3. "Legal drug" means any substance the possession or sale of which is not prohibited by law, including prescription drugs and over-the-counter drugs.
- 4. "Third Party Administrator" means the facility mutually approved by the Employer and the OPBA, which may change from time to time, which collects, screens and/or stores urine samples.
- 5. "Medical Review Officer" (MRO) means the physician approved by the Employer, whose primary responsibility is to review and interpret positive test results obtained through this drug screening program.
- 6. "Employment related accident" means any accident that occurs in the course of, or within the scope of, employment, regardless of whether the employee is physically located on Employer's premises at the time of the accident, and where the accident results in property damage exceeding five hundred dollars (\$500.00) in value or an injury requiring more than first aid treatment.
- 7. "Reasonable suspicion" means objective facts or specific circumstances found to exist, including inferences from those facts and circumstances, which present a reasonable basis to believe an employee is using or abusing illegal drugs.

- 8. "Substance abuse" means a positive screen result indicating the existence of a drug at or above the levels prescribed by the Employer and set for in Section IV(C) of this Article.
- 9. "Traceable in the employee's system" means that the result of the Third-Party Administrator's analysis of the employee's urine specimen is positive for the tested substance pursuant to the standards set forth in Section IV (C) of this Article.

#### B. Procedures

1. When Screening May Occur

Employees may be tested for employment-related illegal drug usage under any of the following conditions:

a) Whenever an employee's behavior creates a reasonable suspicion of drug use.

The following is a non-exclusive list of factors which may give rise to reasonable suspicion of substance abuse. Any factor alone, or in combination with other factors may be sufficient to constitute reasonable suspicion.

- Direct observation of drug use.
- Possession of drugs or related paraphernalia.
- Employee admissions of drug use or possession.
- Symptoms of drug use including, but not limited to, disturbances in gait, slurred speech, impaired gross or fine motor control.
- Any tampering with the drug screening process.
- Any arrest for any drug-related criminal offense, or the filing of any drug-related criminal charge against the employee.

The following factors must be used in combination with other factors and cannot by themselves serve to constitute reasonable suspicion.

- Attendance problems, including absenteeism, tardiness, or unusual use of sick leave.
- Excessive or repetitive vehicular equipment or other workplace accidents.
- b) Whenever an employee is involved in a motor vehicle accident resulting in personal injury or property damage.

Any Employee involved in an employment-related accident <u>MAY</u> be subject to screening. The Chief or their designee will determine whether screening is appropriate with due regard to the nature of the accident and medical treatment involved. Should screening be deemed appropriate, such screening will take place *immediately*.

Treatment of Worker's Compensation Claims After a Positive Drug/Alcohol Test. Ohio Revised Code Sections 4123.35 and 4123.54 have been amended to create a rebuttable presumption that an employee who tests positive for alcohol or drugs after all injury is not eligible for worker's compensation benefits. The new law, effective October 13, 2014, allows for the complete rejection or denial of a claim based upon scientific evidence of the employee's recent use of drugs or alcohol. Under this new legislation, an employee who is shown to have recently used a controlled substance or alcohol (by positive drug or alcohol test) now has the burden of proof and must establish that their industrial injury was not caused by the influence of drugs or alcohol in order for their claim to be allowed. The presumption also arises when the employee refuses to submit to a test. For the purpose of the rebuttable presumption law, a positive alcohol test will be .080 alcohol concentration or greater. Other alcohol levels stated in this policy still apply.

- i. Whenever an employee returns to duty after an absence of thirty (30) calendar days or more resulting from a medical leave or a disciplinary suspension.
- ii. Whenever an employee is certified from a promotional eligibility list. All promotions will be contingent upon a negative test result.

iii. When randomly selected. All employees shall be subject to random drug screening. All employees will be assigned a confidential identification number. The identification number of all employees will be entered into a computer. Once each calendar month the computer will select of the entered identification numbers. A list of the selected identification numbers is then forwarded to the Chief, or Acting Chief matches the list of selected numbers against a master list. The selected employees will then be screened within five (5) calendar days. Notification of screening will be withheld from the selected employee until the day of screening so that the screening will not be compromised. Any selected employee who is on an approved leave status during the current screening process will automatically be tested in the next random screening.

#### C. Decision to Screen for Cause

A supervisor who has a reasonable suspicion of employee substance abuse will immediately relieve the employee from their duties and will immediately notify the Chief, or an Assistant Chief, of the reasons they suspect substance abuse. Under no circumstances will such employee be permitted to operate a motor vehicle, equipment, firearms, or other machinery, the supervisor shall, before the end of the shift, complete and sign an "observation checklist" setting forth the facts upon which such supervisor relied. The Chief or Assistant Chief will determine whether sufficient suspicion exists to warrant screening, and the determination will be based only upon reliable information as set forth in Section VI, Drug Free Workplace.

If the Chief determines that an employee must participate in the screening, it will be considered a direct order.

The Chief or the employee's supervisor will then telephone the Third-Party Administrator to notify it that an employee is being transported for testing.

A supervisor will transport the employee to be screened directly to the Medical Provider, and the employee will remain under observation to ensure the integrity of the screening process.

The supervisor will provide the employee transportation home after the screening process. The employee will remain on leave with pay until the test results are reported to the Chief. If the test results are negative, the Chief, Assistant Chief, or the employee's supervisor will inform the employee of the date the employee is to resume work.

# D. Screening Process

# 1. Sample Collection

Specimen collection will occur in a medical setting, or another mutually agreed to location in compliance with SAMHSA Standards. The procedures should not demean, embarrass, or cause physical discomfort to the employee.

Each step in the collecting and processing of the urine specimens shall be documented to establish procedural integrity and the chain of evidence.

The employee designated to give a sample must be positively identified with photo identification or fingerprint prior to any sample being taken.

The Third-Party Administrator will furnish urine sample containers pre-labeled with the employee's identification number, date, and time of collection. After collection, the sample will be split into two containers and will be sealed, the Chain of Custody form will be completed, and the employee will be asked to confirm the information contained on the sample container and the Chain of Custody form by signing the Chain of Custody form.

# E. Testing Methodology

The Medical Provider selected by the Employer to conduct the analysis must be experienced and capable of quality control, documentation, chain of custody, technical expeliise, and demonstrated proficiency in urinalysis testing. The testing or processing phase shall consist of a two-step procedure.

- I. Initial screening step, and
- II. Confirmation step

The urine sample is first tested using a screening procedure. A specimen-testing positive will undergo a confirmatory gas chromatography/mass spectrometry (go/ins) test. An initial positive report will not be considered positive, rather it will be classified as confirmation pending. Where a positive report is received, urine specimens shall be maintained under secured storage for a period of not less than one (1) year. Any sample, which has been adulterated or is shown to be a substance other than urine shall be reported as such. All test results shall be evaluated by suitable trained medical or scientific personnel prior to being reported to the Medical Review Officer. All test results shall be treated with the same confidentiality as other employee medical records and will be disclosed only to those administrative personnel involved in the screening or disciplinary process.

# F. Screening Standards

Propoxyphene

The Employer in consultation with the Third-Party Administrator have determined the type of screening to be used. The only substances to be tested for, and the threshold substance levels that shall be considered a positive test result are as follows:

Duna	Initial Screening	Confirmation
Drug	Level	Level
Amphetamines	1000 ng/ml	500ng/ml
Methamphetamine	300 ng/ml	300ng/ml
Barbiturates	300 ng/ml	500ng/ml
Benzodiazepines	300 ng/ml	500 ng/ml
Cannabinoids	50 ng/ml	15 ng/ml
Cocaine Metabolite	300 ng/ml	150 ng/ml
Methadone	300 ng/ml	300 ng/ml
Methaqualone	*300 ng/ml	300 ng/ml
*25 ng/ml if immunoassay (specific for free morphine)		
Phencyclidine (PCP)	25 ng/ml	25 ng/ml

Should SAMHSA add to or delete from the current panel of controlled substances or alter the initial screening or confirmation levels, this program will be modified to conform to SAMHSA standards. Employees will be notified, in writing, of such changes.

300 ng/ml

300 ng/ml

#### G. Screen Results

#### 1. Negative Results

If the screen results are negative, the results will be reported in writing to the Medical Review Officer and the sample will be discarded.

#### 2. Positive Results

If the results of the first screen are positive, the laboratory will conduct a Confirmation test using GC/MS (Gas Chomatography/Mass Spectroscopy).

The Third-Party Administrator will report the confirmation screen results, whether positive or negative to the Medical Review Officer. Any adulterated sample, or samples otherwise tampered with, may be treated for disciplinary purposes as a positive result. If the confirmation screen results are positive, employees shall be disciplined with the possibility of being discharged.

#### H. Role of Medical Review Officer

The Medical Review Officer (MRO) is a physician knowledgeable in the medical use of prescription drugs and the pharmacology and toxicology of illicit drugs. The MRO's primary responsibility is to review and interpret positive test results obtained through the DSP. In fulfilling these responsibilities, the MRO is to be guided by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) Mandatory Guidelines.

If any question arises as to the accuracy or validity of a positive test result, the MRO should in collaboration with the laboratory director and consultants, review the laboratory records to determination whether the required procedures were followed, the MRO then makes a determination as to whether the result is scientifically sufficient to take further action. If records from collection sites or laboratories raise doubts about the handling of samples, the MRO may deem the urinary evidence insufficient and no further actions relative to individual employees would occur.

The MRO must also assess and determine whether alternate <u>medical</u> explanations could account for any positive test result. In reviewing the laboratory results, the MRO may conduct a medical interview with the employee, review the employee's medical history, or review any other relevant biomedical factors. The MRO shall also review any information provided by an employee attempting to show legitimate use of a drug. The MRO may suggest that the employee have the split specimen from the original collection tested at another SAMHSA laboratory. This is at the employee's own expense.

The MRO must ultimately determine whether some reason other than illegal drug use explains a drug-positive urine. If the MRO verifies illegal drug use, the information related to the use of illegal drugs will be disclosed to the Chief. Any medical information provided to the MRO that is not specifically related to use of illegal drugs will be treated as confidential and not disclosed. If it is determined with reasonable certainty that there is a legitimate medical or other reason to account for the positive laboratory findings, no information identifying the specific employee will be disclosed and the test results will be reported as negative.

# I. Disciplinary Action and Appeal

- 1. Disciplinary action against an employee abuse shall occur only after a departmental investigation in which the employee is informed of the evidence against them and has had an opportunity to respond.
- 2. Employees, who because of being drug tested are found to be using illegal drugs, shall be subject to dismissal. Refusal to submit to a drug test, or adulteration of, or switching a urine sample shall be grounds for dismissal.
- 3. Employees may appeal any formal disciplinary action to the Mayor.

# J. Third-Party Administrator

The Third-Party Administrator for collection of samples referenced to above is IEBT Mobile Drug and Alcohol, 1685 Southeast Avenue, Tallmadge, OH 44278. The Medical Provider of laboratory services in collection with urinalysis testing is Dr. Stephen Kracht, 7500 West 110<sup>th</sup> St., Ste 400A, P.O. Box 25903, Overland Park, KS 66225. In the event IEBT is unavailable or unable to assist in the collection and/or submission of the test results for analysis, OMEGA Laboratories 400 North Cleveland Avenue, Mogadore, OH 44260 will be used.

# K. Notice of Education of Employees Regarding Testing

1. All employees will be informed of the Employer's drug testing policy. Employees will be provided with information concerning the impact of the use of drugs on job performance, the manner in which these drug tests are conducted, the reliability of the tests performed, under what circumstances employees will be subject to testing, what the tests can determine, the types of substances to be screened, and the new employees will be provided with this information when initially hired. No employee shall be tested until this info1mation has been provided.

2. There will be a 90-day information distribution period prior to the implementation of testing under this policy for employees.

# L. Probationary Employee Drug Testing

All newly hired probationary employees shall be required and a condition of employment to participate in any unannounced mass/mandatory drug tests scheduled during the probationary period.

# M. Participation in a Treatment Program

Employees who may be drug dependent are encouraged to voluntarily seek professional assistance through a treatment program supervised by the Employee Assistant Program. Any self-referral will be kept confidential to the extent provided by the EAP's policies and procedures. Voluntary assistance should be sought BEFORE the drug abuse affects job performance or endangers fellow employees or employees of the public.

Although rehabilitation is one of the principal mechanisms relied upon to reach the goal of this program, rehabilitation is considered only secondary to the primary goal of ensuring safety. The Chief will, therefore, recommend referral to EAP only when the circumstances of any employee's case indicate that treatment will be both therapeutic, and a reasonable alternative to facilitating the goal of this program. If the Chief, refers an employee to the EAP, such supervisory referral will be considered a direct order. Supervisory referrals will be kept confidential to the extent provided in This Program, and in the EAP's policies and procedures, except that the EAP will submit a written report to the Chief when an employee successfully completes the EAP, refuses to participate in the EAP, or withdraws from the EAP before successful completion of the program.

The Employer's EAP is separated and distinct from the Fire Department and this Drug Screen Program, and therefore, any referral or treatment, is subject to the EAP's own policies and procedures.

Participation in the EAP will not necessarily preclude disciplinary action with respect to any violations of the law or work rules and regulations.

#### **EXHIBIT A**

#### JOB DESCRIPTION

#### **FULL-TIME FIREFIGHTER**

#### **DESCRIPTION:**

Under the direct supervision of a Captain or other superior officer, the firefighter extinguishes fires, provides rescue services and maintains equipment in constant readiness to respond to emergency situations. Provides first-aid and/or emergency medical treatment and shall be an Ohio State Certified Paramedic, Ohio State Certified Fire Safety Inspector, Ohio State Certified Fire Instructor and a State of Ohio Certified Firefighter & Level II. The firefighter shall also have completed NIMS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, 800. A wide range of knowledge is required in order to be prepared to cope with varied hazards or potential hazards. A large proportion of time is spent maintaining a state of readiness for fire responses. When serious fire conditions occur, work can be hazardous and is physically demanding.

#### **EXAMPLES OF WORK:**

Responds to alarms by driving fire apparatus or ambulances as needed;

Provide Emergency Medical Services;

Operates pumps and lays fire lines;

Cuts through structures, handles hose lines, climbs ladders;

Enters structures, carries persons from fire or smoke-filled buildings;

Cleans up property and equipment after fires;

Inspects, checks, cleans and maintains fire apparatus and equipment;

Tests, flushes, paints and clears around fire hydrants;

Maintains and cleans fire station, maintains building grounds;

Full-Time Personnel may fulfill the role of Shift Lead if their seniority permits.

Studies and attends training sessions;

Answers questions and conducts tours of station;

Drives emergency vehicles to scene of accident, injury or illness;

Performs other duties requiring similar skills or as directed by the senior officer.

Required to attend trainings;

Conducts fire inspections as directed by the Chief or Assistant Chief.

#### EXHIBIT B

#### EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The employee handbook describes important information about the Village of Mogadore Fire Department, and I understand that I should consult my supervisor regarding any questions not answered in the handbook. I have entered into my employment relationship with Village of Mogadore Fire Department voluntarily and acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment. Accordingly, either I or the Village can terminate the relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time, so long as there is not violation of applicable federal or state law.

I understand and agree that no manager, supervisor, or representative of the Village has any authority to enter into any agreement for employment other than at-will. Only the Mayor has the authority to make any such agreement and then only in writing signed by the Mayor.

This manual and the policies and procedures contained herein supersede any and all prior practices, oral or written representations, or statements regarding the terms and conditions of your employment with the Village. By distributing this handbook, the Village expressly revokes any and all previous policies and procedures which are inconsistent with those contained herein.

I understand that, except for employment at-will status, any and all policies and practices may be changed at any time by the Village, and the company reserves the right to change my hours, wages and working conditions at any time. All such changes will be communicated through official notices, and I understand that revised information may supersede, modify, or eliminate existing policies.

I understand and agree that nothing in the employee handbook creates, or is intended to create, a promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at the Village of Mogadore Fire Department is employment at-will, which may be terminated at the will of either the Village or myself. Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a legal document. I understand and agree that employment and compensation may be terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by the Village or myself.

I have received the handbook, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies contained in this handbook and any revisions made to it.				
Employee's signature	-			
Employee's name (print)	<del>-</del>			
Date				

# **EXHIBIT C**

# VILLAGE OF MOGADORE FIRE DEPARTMENT SICK LEAVE DONATION PROGRAM

PAGE NO.	0811	
I AGE NO.	AOIT	

#### RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Resolution No.	2024-79		2024
----------------	---------	--	------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PART-TIME FIREFIGHTER HANDBOOK TO PROVIDE FOR INCREASES IN COMPENSATION FOR PART-TIME FIREFIGHTERS IN THE VILLAGE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, this Council has previously adopted a Part-Time Firefighter Handbook setting forth the terms and conditions of the employment of part-time firefighters by the Village, including compensation and benefits; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the part-time firefighters of the Village; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to amend the Part-Time Firefighter Handbook to provide for an increase in the compensation of the part-time firefighters of the Village.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: This Council hereby approves and adopts the amended version of the Part-Time Firefighter Handbook attached hereto as Exhibit A, amending Section 11 thereof, for the purpose of increasing the compensation of the part-time firefighters of the Village.

SECTION 2: This Resolution, and the amended version of the Part-Time Firefighter Handbook, shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: All other ordinances, resolutions, or parts of other ordinances and resolutions which may be in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared null and void and are of no further force and effect.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

PAGE NO. <u>0812</u>	P	<b>AGE</b>	NO.	0812		
----------------------	---	------------	-----	------	--	--

# RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Resolution No. 2024-79	Passed	, 20_24
SECTION 5: This Resolution is for the immediate preservation of the pur of Mogadore and for the purpose of immost the Village prior to the effective day vote of at least five (5) members elected force upon its passage by Council and a in force at the earliest period allowed by	blic peace, health, and safety of nediately establishing the pay f te, and, provided this Resoluti I or appointed to this Council, pproval by the Mayor, otherwi	the residents of the Village for the part-time firefighters on receives the affirmative it shall take effect and be in
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

# THE MOGADORE PART-TIME FIREFIGHTERS HANDBOOK

**Effective** 

December 28, 2024 **Resolution 2024-79** 

Intentionally Left Blank

# **Table of Contents**

1.	PREAMBLE	. 5
2.	PURPOSE AND INTENT	. 5
3.	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE	. 5
4.	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	. 6
5.	HIRING AND PROMOTION	. 6
6.	DETERMINATION OF LEVEL/TRAINING	. 7
7.	LICENSE / CERTIFICATION RESPONSIBILITY	. 7
8.	WORK PERIOD	. 8
9.	SHIFT ASSIGNMENTS	. 9
10.	CALLING OFF SHIFTS	9
11.	WAGES AND OTHER COMPENSATION	. 10
12.	INCENTIVE BONUS.	. 11
14.	HOLIDAY BENEFITS	
15.	UNIFORMS	. 12
16.	INSURANCE COVERAGE	. 14
17.	MILITARY DUTY	. 14
18.	PAYROLL PERIOD	. 14
19.	DUES AND DEDUCTIONS	. 14
20.	TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT	. 15
21.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	15
22.	HOUSEKEEPING DUTIES	. 1
23.	DISIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	. 16
24.	DRUG FREE WORKPLACE	. 17
25.	MEDICAL MARIJUANA	. 20
26.	LEAVE OF ABSENCE	. 21
27.	GENDER AND PLURAL	. 21
28.	CONFORMITY TO LAW	
29.	LEGISLATIVE IMPLEMENTATION	. 22
30	DURATION	22

Intentionally Left Blank

#### 1. PREAMBLE

This handbook is made by the Village of Mogadore, hereinafter referred as the Employer for the part time firefighters in the Village of Mogadore.

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS HANDBOOK ARE NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS A PROMISE OF CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT, A GUARANTEE OF INSTITUTIONAL DUE PROCESS, OR A COMMITMENT TO EXISTING OR PREVAILING COMPENSATION. The policies are subject to change at the discretion of the Mayor and Council.

#### 2. PURPOSE AND INTENT

In an effort to continue harmonious and cooperative relationships with its employees and to insure the orderly and uninterrupted efficient operation of government.

- A. To recognize the legitimate interests of the part-time firefighters in the determination of the terms and conditions of their employment.
- B. To promote fair and reasonable working conditions.
- C. To promote individual efficiency and service to the citizens of the Village of Mogadore.
- D. To avoid interruption or interference with the efficient operation of the Employer's business.

#### 3. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE

A. All probationary employees shall not be entitled to coverage under the "discipline and discharge" portion of this handbook. The probationary period shall be for the twelve (12) month period following the hiring of new employees. However, a new employee's probationary period can be extended for an additional twelve (12) months, or for a total of two (2) years, in any situation in which the probationary employee receives an unfavorable written evaluation from the Fire Chief or his designee, prior to the conclusion of his initial twelve (12) month probationary period.

B. Probationary employees shall be paid according to pay structure set forth in Item 11 of this handbook.

New hires will complete a 60-day orientation and during that period will be scheduled at the discretion of the Chief After completing 30 days of the orientation period, the Chief will determine if the new hire may sign up for shifts o the regular sign-up schedule for shifts staring the 1<sup>st</sup> day of the month following their 60-day orientation. If not release to sign up for shifts, the new hire will meet with the Chief to discuss his concerns and outline a plan of action so th new hire can be released to sign up for regular shifts.

#### 4. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Not by way of limitation of the following, but to only indicate the type of matters or rights, which belong to and are inherent to the Employer, the Employer retains the right to:

Hire, discharge, transfer, suspend and discipline the part-time firefighters for just cause;

- a. Determine the number of persons required to be employed, laid off or discharged for just cause;
- b. Determine the qualifications of the part-time firefighters covered by this handbook;
- c. Determine the starting and quitting time and the number of hours to be worked by the part-time firefighters;
- d. Make any and all reasonable rules and regulations;
- e. Determine the work assignments of the part-time firefighters;
- f. Determine the basis for selection, retention and promotion of employees to or for positions that are not within the bargaining unit established by this handbook;
- g. Determine the type of equipment used and the sequence of work processes;

- h. Determine the making of technological alterations by revising either process or equipment, or both;
- i. Determine work standards and the quality and quantity of work to be produced;
- j. Select and locate buildings and other facilities;
- k. Establish, expand transfer and/or consolidate work processes and facilities;
- 1. Consolidate, merge or otherwise transfer any and all of its facilities, property, processes or work with or to any other municipality or entity or effect or change in any respect the legal status, management responsibility of such property, facilities, processes or work;
- m. Terminate or eliminate all or any part of its work or facilities.

#### 5. HIRING AND PROMOTION

New applicants who seek employment as a part-time firefighter shall complete the appropriate written application and submit it to the Fire Chief, who shall in all cases make the final selection.

#### 6. DETERMINATION OF LEVEL/TRAINING

For use in this handbook, the part-time firefighters shall be classified as to their level of training as follows:

- a. EMT: A member of the Mogadore Fire Department certified by the State of Ohio as an Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) and certified as Firefighter I or II.
- b. EMT-I: A member of the Mogadore Fire Department certified by the State of Ohio as an Emergency Medical Technician (EMT-I) and certified as Firefighter I or II.
- c. Paramedic: A member of the Mogadore Fire Department certified by the State of Ohio a Paramedic and certified as Firefighter I or II.

# 7. LICENSE / CERTIFICATION RESPONSIBILITY

In order to maintain proficiency within the Fire Department it is incumbent upon all members to keep all licenses and certifications current. Therefore, all members shall be required to provide the Fire Chief's office with proof of each certification and, or, license they possess. Additionally, they shall provide proof of each subsequent recertification or re-licensing prior to the original expiring.

#### Part8. WORK PERIOD

The part-time firefighters shall be required to work as follows:

The work period for the part-time firefighters shall be defined as a seven (7) day, 53-hour period, consistent with the Fair Labor Standards Act. For the purposes of this handbook the following shall also apply:

- A. With the exception of those described in C, below, each part-time firefighter shall be required to sign up and work 6 shifts, each month if a shift is available. Shifts will be designated 00000800, 0800-1600, 1600-2359
  - 1. A shift is considered worked when the firefighter works a minimum of 6 consecutive hours of the scheduled 8-hour shift.
  - 2. Any part-time firefighter not working the required 6 shifts for two (2) consecutive months, is subject to progressive discipline up to and including dismissal, unless such absence is for just cause or excused (FMLA. illness, injury, etc.)
- B. During those times when there are time changes for Day Light Savings Time or Standard Time, part-time firefighters shall work the hours required to fill a shift as determined by the Fire Chief. The individuals shall be paid for the actual hours worked.
- C. Part time members detailed to special assignments may be required to work a minimum of 36 hours per month, are not required to work a minimum of six (6) shifts per month, and are exempt from the requirements of section A, above.

- 1. Part time members detailed to special assignments have the ability to fill any shifts in the schedule that any other part-time firefighter with the same certifications may fill.
- 2. Part time members detailed to special assignments may be used for response during their duty time at the discretion of the Chief or acting supervisor.
- 3. All special assignments shall be made at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief or his designee.
- D. If the Fire Chief chooses to utilize a firefighter for details such as fire prevention or computer data entry beyond the required six (6) shifts per four week period, the firefighter shall earn one (1) bonus shift for every six (6) hours worked on such assignment. Additional assignments for stand-by at fireworks or driving a truck at a parade shall not be recognized for these purposes. The Fire Chief shall be the sole determinate of the recognition of these hours.

#### 9. SHIFT ASSIGNMENTS

- A. Shifts shall be assigned to the following procedure:
  - 1. All part time employees, authorized for shift fill, shall submit their availability on the approved scheduling program by the 20<sup>th</sup> day of the month for the month starting 6 weeks later. An example would be submitting availability on the 20<sup>th</sup> of June for the August shift calendar.
  - 2. Those employees that are assigned a reoccurring set schedule are exempt from this provision.
  - 3. The Chief or his designee shall compile a shift calendar according the availability submitted. This calendar shall be posted at least 1 month prior to the start of the calendar. Example would be the August calendar would be posted July 1.
  - 4. Any part-time firefighter not submitting the required availability for two (2) consecutive months, is subject to progressive discipline up to and including dismissal

5. After the schedule is posted any employee may choose to schedule themselves for any open shift as long as it does not violate the 53 hour work week.

#### 10. CALLING OFF SHIFTS

All employees are responsible to work the assigned shift, either from the original posted schedule or for shifts the employee choses to schedule themselves for. If an employee chose to not work a scheduled shift then it is the responsibility of the employee to get their own replacement for that shift. If no replacement can be found and the employee still does not work that shift it will be considers an unexcused absence.

If an employee needs to call off a shift the following procedures shall be followed:

- 1. The employee calling off a shift shall call the station and report off work to whomever answers the call.
- 2. The person making the call shall put out a page that there is an open shift stating the date and time of the shift.
- 3. If for some reason no one will answer the call the employee calling off will repeat the procedure until they contact a fire department employee. Leaving a message on the phone will not be considered "calling off".

#### 11. WAGES AND OTHER COMPENSATION

A. Effective, employees shall be compensated according to the following scale.

Assistant Chief \$6.00 per hour additional to License Rate

Captain \$4.00 per hour additional to license rate.

FF/EMT P \$ 21.22 per hour

FF/EMT I \$ 20.32 per hour

FF-/EMT A \$19.13 per hour

FF or EMT only (Provisional) \$18.05 per hour

SHIFT LEAD \$ 2.00 per hour additional to License rate

B. Subject to the Fire Chief's approval, pay will be at time and half (1.5) the rate for hours worked over eight (8) in a twenty-four (24) hour period when **responding from home and** at an incident.

- C. All probationary firefighters will be paid one dollar (\$1.00) less an hour than their licensed rate while on probation.
- D. Each member of the fire department shall be compensated for a minimum of 2 hours when responding to an emergency alarm, not on duty. All time above and beyond 2 hours shall be calculated to the half hour
- E. The Shift Lead position shall be paid to the senior member on that shift when an officer is not working that shift. Captains, Assistant Chief and Chief are not eligible for the shift lead pay and shall be considered shift lead when working. Those acting as Shift lead shall ensure shift truck checks are completed, shift housekeeping tasks are completed, fire and ems reports are completed and all pertinent information is relayed to the oncoming shift lead or Chief. This includes but not limited to mechanical issues with vehicles or equipment, personnel issues, or issues regarding emergency calls. Members must be off probation in order to qualify for shift lead pay.

#### 12. INCENTIVE BONUS.

A. An incentive bonus pay program has been instituted to encourage employees of the Fire Department to pursue future training. Said program guidelines and payment of bonus shall be <u>as follows and</u> are paid one time only.

Fire Inspector	\$325.00
Fire/EMS Instructor	\$325.00
Firefighter level IB	\$325.00
Firefighter level II	\$625.00
EMT-P Certified (new)	\$675.00
EMT-A Certified (new)	\$350.00
EMT-I Certified (new)	\$350.00
SCHMRT (new)	\$350.00
Technical Rescue Team	\$350.00

Said bonuses shall be payable in the fourth quarter of the year of achievement or completion. Only one EMS education Bonus will be paid per person per year. Such bonus will be based on the highest qualification attained.

#### 13. RETIREMENT BONUS.

15 years service	\$1,751.00
20 years service	\$2,009.00
25 years service	\$3,708.00
30 years service	\$4,738.00
35 years service	\$5,665.00

# 14. HOLIDAY BENEFITS

- A. A part-time firefighter, who has been an employee in excess of thirty (30) calendar days, shall be entitled to holiday benefits for those holidays listed below:
  - New Year's Day
  - Martin Luth King Day
  - Memorial Day
  - Juneteenth
  - Independence Day (July 4<sup>th</sup>)
  - Thanksgiving Day
  - Day after Thanksgiving
  - Christmas Day
  - Labor Day
  - Christmas Eve Day
- B. In the event eligible part-time firefighters work on any day listed above as a traditional holiday, they shall be paid two (2) times their regular rate of pay.

#### 15. UNIFORMS

The part-time firefighters, who have completed a full year of service defined as at least Four Hundred and forty two (442) hours worked in the year prior to the calculation of the uniform maintenance allowance and have submitted completed training records from their full time fire department, shall be entitled to a uniform maintenance allowance, irrespective of the type of assignments for which they are scheduled, for the purpose of purchasing items approved by the Administration.

- A. The amount of uniform maintenance allowance to be paid to each member of the department after working a full year as defined above shall be five hundred twenty-five dollars (\$525.00) annually. No uniform allowance shall be paid in an employee's first year of employment. The uniform allowance shall be paid by check in March.
- B. Each part-time firefighter shall be entitled to a uniform maintenance allowance annually subject to the following terms and conditions:
  - 1. That such uniform maintenance allowance period shall be computed from January 1st to December 31st of each year.
  - 2. Under no circumstances will an employee be granted more than one uniform allowance in any year.
    - 3. Any firefighter who is on an approved LOA unable to work due to extended illness or injury shall receive a prorated portion of the Uniform Allowance based on the months they were available to work and has averaged 42 hours per month for those months worked. However, any firefighter who is on an approved LOA and who has fulfilled the 500-hour requirement for the calendar year shall receive the entire benefit.
  - 4. All uniform items provided by the Village and that include a Mogadore Fire Department patch, emblem or logo shall be immediately returned to the Fire Chief upon request or upon separation from Village Employment.
  - 5. Dentures, watches, optics or clothing and equipment items that are damaged in the course of Fire Department duties shall be replaced by the Village. Any damaged personal firefighting gear in excess of standard

issue will be replaced/reimbursed as standard issue. Such replacement shall be made upon approval of the Fire Chief.

- C. Station Uniforms shall consist of the following:
  - 1. Personnel that are working on shift shall wear an approved Mogadore Fire Department uniform as described below.
    - a. Class B uniform shall consist of Navy colored Workrite shirt. Mogadore Department patch on left upper arm, either metal or embroidered badge over left breast pocket and name plate over right pocket. Silver badge and name plate for firefighters and gold for officers. Pants shall be Workrite Navy in color. black belt, black socks, and black work shoes/boots.
    - b. Class C uniform shall consist of Navy colored Workrite pants with Mogadore Fire Department approved Navy Tee shirt, Sweatshirt, or Duty Shirt. These shall be worn with black belt, black socks and black shoes/boots.
- D. Personnel shall be in uniform within 15 minutes of start of shift. If you are coming off your fulltime shift and need to shower you should be in uniform within 30 minutes of start of shift. Personnel may change into workout clothes within 15 minutes before workout session but must be back in uniform 30 minutes after workout has ended.
- E. In case of a fire or messy call, while on duty, coveralls shall be provided to change into after your shower.
- F. Navy Work Shorts may be worn during the months of May September with the approved shirts listed in Item 2 of this memo
- G. All members are to have a Class B Uniform.
- H. Class B uniform shall be worn for public presentations, council meetings, or any other time as directed by the Chief

#### 16. INSURANCE COVERAGE

The Village will provide and pay the full premium for Accident and Sickness Insurance on all Fire Department employees to include coverage for any prophylaxis treatment required due to pathogen exposure.

The Fire Chief will see that flu shots are made available to Fire Department personnel.

#### 17. MILITARY DUTY

Any member of the bargaining unit who is called to military service shall be reinstated as a member of the Fire Department upon application within ninety (90) days of his release from active duty. They shall retain their previous rank and seniority in the Fire Department.

#### 18. PAYROLL PERIOD

The payroll shall be distributed by automatic deposit. This will be bi weekly.

#### 19. DUES AND DEDUCTIONS

- A. During the term of this handbook, the Employer will deduct current consistent dues for the Mogadore Firefighters Association provided that the time of such deduction, there is in the possession of the Employer a current, written and signed authorization for the deduction of dues for the employee, all subject to State and Federal laws.
- B. Previously signed authorizations shall continue to be effective until revoked in writing,
- C. Dues deductions shall be made at least on a monthly basis, and paid to the Association, with the Employer providing a list of those employees for whom dues deductions have been made.
- D. The Association and the part-time firefighters shall indemnify and save the Village/ Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that arise out of by reason of action taken or not taken by the Employer for purposes of complying with any of the provisions of this Article.

### 20. TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT

- A. Training costs including tuition, lodging, meals, and mileage shall be governed by the Village policies that presently exist for nonunion employees and as updated from time to time.
- B. All training must be approved in advance in writing by the Fire Chief.

## 21. NON-DISCRIMINATION

The parties to this handbook shall not discriminate for or against any employee on the basis of membership or position in the Association.

## 22. HOUSEKEEPING DUTIES

## A. Daily Duties:

### 0800-1600 Crew

- 1. Take out all trash. This includes bay, bathroom, offices, and kitchen,
- 2. Clean Bathrooms, station and bathrooms by kitchen and shower.
- 3. Sweep and mop floors, meeting room, offices hall, bunk room hall and bunk rooms.

### 1600-0000 Crew

- 1. Clean Kitchen, Load run and unload dishwasher, clean and put away dishes in sink, clean counters and stove.
- 2. Sweep bay floor of debris and leaves.
- 3. Clean windows on overhead doors, exterior doors, radios desk.

Overnight Crew 0000-0800: Put away your bedding and make sure bunk room is tidy.

All Crews: At the end of your shift pick up your trash and personal belongings and put them in their proper place. This includes putting your gear away.

- B. Mailboxes: Assigned mailbox shall be cleaned out at the end of each month of all information older than 2 weeks.
- C. Lockers: Each member is allotted one locker. If space is available you may have a second.

Your name is to be on all lockers you have items in. Unnamed lockers will be cleaned out.

- 1. All personal items are to be kept in your locker
- 2. Lockers are to be kept closed.
- 3. Bed rolls are to be kept neat and put away.

### 23. DISIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

# A. Rights

- 1. No non-probationary part-time firefighter shall be reduced in pay or position, suspended, removed or reprimanded except for just cause.
- 2. The Employee who is being disciplined shall receive a copy of all disciplinary notices immediately upon issuance through the mailbox and via the employee's email address on file.
- 3. The Chief shall conduct an interview concerning any discipline issued with the individual who is the subject of the discipline, upon the request of that individual

## B. Departmental Hearings

1. Prior to any departmental hearing of a part-time firefighter, he will receive from the Fire Chief or his designee, a written statement of all charges and specifications. At the hearing, the part-time firefighter who is the charged party will be allowed to be represented and will be allowed to call witnesses material to his defense. The charged party shall have the opportunity to confront and cross-examine his accuser. For any alleged offense for which suspension or dismissal is contemplated, the part-time firefighter has the right to a hearing with representation.

- 2. The charged party or his representative may make a written request for a continuance. Such request will be granted where practical. The length of such continuance shall be mutually agreed upon whenever possible.
- 3. The Village will make all good faith efforts to notify the charged party of any charges or of any decision reached as a result of a departmental hearing prior to any public statement.

# C. Progressive Action

Where appropriate and subject to the discretion of the Village, the principles of progressive disciplinary action will be followed. The progression will at least include: 1) a documented oral reprimand; 2) then a written reprimand; 3) then a demotion and/or a suspension for the same or related offense, prior to a dismissal.

Should the Employer determine to invoke summary discharge, the burden of proof will be on it to show with clear and convincing evidence that the seriousness of the offense outweighed the obligation to apply the provisions of the above discipline procedure.

### D. Duration of Records

All actions, except documented oral reprimands (written reprimands, suspensions or dismissal) will be maintained in each bargaining unit member's personnel file throughout their period of employment with the exception that any record of written reprimands will be removed from their file upon the written request of the member, one (1) year after such reprimand was given if no further disciplinary action has occurred. Written reprimands so removed from a personnel file shall be given to the part-time firefighter along with their letter of request for such removal. In any case in which a written reprimand, suspension, or dismissal is disaffirmed through the grievance procedures or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the personnel records shall clearly indicate such disaffirmance. In addition, unsubstantiated or unproven allegations or complaints of misconduct made against a part time firefighter and appearing in the department files shall not be considered in future disciplinary action or promotional considerations and shall not be shared outside the department.

#### 24. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

- A. The Village recognizes that the use of illegal or unauthorized drugs or alcoholic beverages on Village premises or while on Village business poses a serious threat to the safety of our employees and compromises the quality and reliability of its work. Therefore, the Village has established the following prohibitions:
  - 1. Possession, manufacture, dispensation, use or distribution of illegal or unauthorized drugs or alcoholic beverages on Village premises or while doing business for the Village business; or,
  - 2. Unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance as defined in Schedule 1-5 in Section 202 of the Controlled Substance Act.

Violation of these prohibitions may result in disciplinary action up to and including immediate termination of employment.

The Village has established a drug-free awareness program and will communicate this program to employees annually. In addition to receiving a copy of this policy statement, employees will be informed of the:

- 1. Danger of alcohol and drug abuse in the workplace;
- 2. The Village's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace
- 3. Availability of any Employee Assistance Program and counseling programs
- **4.** Penalties for drug abuse violations

Employees must notify the Village of any criminal drug statue conviction for a violation no later than five (5) days after such conviction. Failure to report a conviction or to abide by the terms of this policy statement may result in disciplinary action including termination of employment.

Employees of other companies, including contractors and personnel of vendors, determined to be in violation of the Village's Drug-Free Workplace Policy will not be allowed on Village property and/or may be denied access to Village property.

## B. Drug Testing

All Village employees may be subject to drug and/or alcohol testing under any of the following conditions:

- 1. All applicants for employment with the Village shall submit to a minimum of a 5panel drug screen and urine test. The applicant must pass these tests, as a condition of being considered for employment.
- 3. Any applicant who fails to take the urine drug test or who fails the test will be denied employment.
- 4. Whenever the Village has reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee is under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance, the supervisor or the Mayor or the Fiscal Office may require such employee to submit a urine or an alcohol sample for controlled substance testing.
- 5. Reasonable suspicion may be based on: (i) specific, contemporaneous, articulate observations such as direct observation of controlled substances and/or alcohol use, possession, or distribution, or the physical symptoms of being under the influence of controlled substances and/or alcohol, such as, but not limited to, slurred speech, the odor of alcoholic beverage or marijuana, dilated pupils, changes in affect, dynamic mood swings, etc.; (ii) Reasonable suspicion may also be based on a pattern of abnormal conduct or erratic or aberrant behavior, or deteriorating work performance which appears to be related to substance abuse and does not appear to be attributable to other factors; (iii) an employee being charged with unauthorized drug possession, use or trafficking; (iv) repeated or flagrant violation of the appointing authority's safety or work rules, which are determined by a supervisor to pose a substantial risk of physical injury or property damage and which appear to be related to substance abuse or substance use and do not appear to be attributable to other factors.
- 6. It may also be based upon an employee's involvement in a significant incident, such as an accident, in which his health and safety or the health and safety of others was jeopardized, or in which property damage occurred.
- 7. It is the policy that a post-accident testing is required before returning to work. Testing may also be required before returning to duty or after a leave of absence, prolonged illness or rehabilitation.

### C. Refusal to Test

Refusal to submit to drug and alcohol tests as ordered by the Village will be grounds for disciplinary action up to and including discharge. Other actions that may be considered a Refusal to Test include, but not limited to:

- 1. Refusal to sign the form releasing test results to the Village;
- 2. A non-medical delay in providing urine, breath, blood, saliva, or any other specimen;
- 3. Failure to report directly to the testing facility upon notification;
- 4. The use of any product to invalidate the test results;
- 5. Failure to provide adequate breath for alcohol testing.
- 6. Engaging in conduct that obstructs the testing procedure; or
- 7. Failing to remain readily available for a post-accident test.

# D. Follow-Up Testing

Any employee who tested positive for alcohol or controlled substance while on duty, that was referred to a substance abuse program for treatment, may be subject to unannounced follow-up alcohol and/or controlled substance testing consisting of, up to six tests in the twelve-month period following the employee's return to work.

If the Village extends to an employee, found to be in violation of this policy, the opportunity to maintain employment, the employee will enter into a last-chance contract that will specify the treatment terms and extent of follow-up testing. A return-to-duty test will be administered at the expense of the Village, but all follow-up testing is at the expense of the employee. Any subsequent violation of the policy during the term of agreement, or deviation from the conditions stated in the agreement, will be considered cause for termination.

## 25. MEDICAL MARIJUANA

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medication is not prohibited. However, when taking any prescription or non-prescription medical which may interfere with the safe and effective performance of their duties, employees are encouraged to consult their licensed medical doctor and report such use to the Village's designee.

Certification from a medical doctor that an employee is able to perform the normal functions of their position may be required before the employee will be allowed to continue working. This requirement includes medical marijuana that has been recommended by an authorized medical doctor and dispensed by a licensed marijuana dispensary in accordance with the requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and any related regulations.

The Village has determined that it shall permit and regulate the use of medical marijuana by Village employees, provided that:

- 1. all Village employees shall be prohibited from using medical marijuana so as to cause them to be under the influence during the scope and course of their employment; and,
- 2. all Village employees shall be prohibited from possessing medical marijuana and related paraphernalia while on Village property or in a Village vehicle; and,
- 3. Village employees that perform safety-sensitive duties shall be strictly prohibited from using medical marijuana.

With regards to the use of Medical Marijuana:

- 1. Any Village employee who is using medical marijuana shall report such use to the Village's designee, shall provide evidence (i) of the employee being registered with the state patient registry, and (ii) of recommendation from a medical doctor who has certificate to recommend its use, and (iii) that the medical marijuana was obtained from a licensed marijuana dispensary.
- 2. An employee who has s recommendation for medical marijuana who tests positive for marijuana shall be treated as using an appropriately prescribed drug when they have complied with the requirements of subsection A and have used the marijuana in compliance with the physician's recommendations.

The use of Medical Marijuana is prohibited as follows:

- 1. By employees who are required to hold commercial driver's licenses in the course of their employment.
- 2. By employees who are required and/or permitted to carry firearms in the course of their employment.
- 3. By an employee so as to cause them to be under the influence of medical marijuana during the course and scope of their employment.
- 4. By an employee during the scope and course of their employment.

All Village employees are prohibited from possessing medical marijuana and related paraphernalia while on Village property or in a Village vehicle.

An employee that tests positive for a medical marijuana product during post-injury drug testing shall not be eligible for Workers' Compensation even though the employee has a recommendation for that use from a physician who is properly certified to make the recommendations.

### 26. LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A part-time firefighter who has completed one (1) year of continuous service with the Employer shall be entitled to a leave of absence in any five (5) year period. Such leave shall not exceed a three (3) month period of time. At no time shall more than three (3) part-time firefighters be on leave of absence at the same time. A part-time firefighter may receive more than one (1) leave of absence in any five (5) year period, or a leave of absence of greater than three (3) months duration for good cause, which shall include illness, injury or emotional distress. Under no circumstances shall the Fire Chief be required to grant a leave when three (3) part-time firefighters are already on leave of absence. At the sole discretion of the Fire Chief, any of the above restrictions may be waived.

All leaves of absence must be applied for and granted in writing. Except in cases of emergency, all leaves shall be applied for at least thirty (30) days in advance of the start of such leave of absence. Along with the request for leave, the part-time firefighter shall apply any and all available documentation in support of such leave of absence request, including medical proof where appropriate.

An employee shall be notified of the decision of the Fire Chief on such leave request within ten (10) days after he has received the request.

## 27. GENDER AND PLURAL

Whenever the context so requires, the use of the words herein in the singular shall be construed to include the plural, and words in the plural, the singular, and words whether in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall be construed to include all of the said genders. By use of either the masculine or feminine genders, It is understood that said use is for convenience purposes only and is not to be interpreted to be discriminatory by reason of sex.

### 28. CONFORMITY TO LAW

This handbook shall be subject to and subordinated to any applicable present and future Federal, State, and Local laws. The invalidity of any provision of this handbook by reason of any such existing or future law shall not affect the validity of the surviving provisions.

The Village recognize and abide by those laws and directives issued by Federal and State agencies to ensure a safe and non-discriminatory work environment for all employees as represented by EEO (Equal Employment Opportunity), Sexual Harassment, Occupational Health and Safety, and Violence in the Workplace.

If the enactment of legislation, or a determination by a court of final and competent jurisdiction (whether in a proceeding between the parties or in one not between the parties but controlling by reason of the facts) renders any portion of this handbook invalid or unenforceable, such legislation or decision shall not affect the validity of the surviving provisions of this handbook, which shall remain in full force and effect as if such invalid provision thereof had not been included herein.

## 29. LEGISLATIVE IMPLEMENTATION

It is agreed by and between the parties that any provision of this handbook requiring legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing the additional funds, therefore, shall not become effective until the appropriate legislative body has given its approval.

## 30. DURATION

This handbook shall become effective at 12:01 a.m., on the date of its execution and shall continue in full force and effect, along with any amendments made and annexed hereto, until replaced or amended.

It shall be the Employer's responsibility to supply a copy of this handbook to each member of the department either by paper or electronically.

Resolution No.	2024-80	Passed	, 20 24

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-102 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED BY THE VILLAGE TO THE CHIEF OF POLICE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Chief of Police; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Chief of Police.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: That Section 1 of Resolution 2023-102 shall be amended as follows:

The compensation for the position of full-time Chief of Police shall be \$91,839.14 annually, which shall be payable bi-weekly. In addition, the Chief of Police shall receive an annual clothing and equipment allowance of \$1,500.00.

SECTION 2: The employment benefits to be provided to the full-time Police Chief shall be the same as those provided to full-time patrolmen and sergeants covered by the collective bargaining agreement between the Village and the Ohio Patrolmen's Benevolent Association currently in effect.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 5: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for the Chief of Police prior to the effective date, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

P.	AGI	E NO.	0814

Resolution No. 2024-80	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
Attest:	Mayor	Date
Clerk-Treasurer		

PA	<b>GE</b>	NO.	0815	
	-	1101	VULU	

Resolution No. 202	4-81	Passed	202	24

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2024-17 CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS FOR THE FULL-TIME POLICE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/MAYOR'S COURT CLERK, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Police Department Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Police Department Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: That Section 1 of Resolution No. 2024-17 is hereby amended to state as follows:

There is hereby created a Full-Time Police Department Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk position. The full-time position shall be compensated at an annual salary of \$41,200.00, which shall be payable bi-weekly, and shall include full-time benefits. The duties of the Full-Time Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk shall be the same as the part-time position of the same name. The Full-Time Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk shall give bond in the same amount and form, and from the same surety, as the bond given by the Assistant Clerk-Treasurer, and the premium on the same shall be paid by the Village.

SECTION 2: The employment benefits to be provided to the Police Department Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Clerk shall be the same as those provided other full-time employees of the Village other than the full-time Police Department and Fire Department employees, with the exception of the uniform allowance.

SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 4: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements

PAGE NO.	0816	
----------	------	--

Resolution No. 2024-81	Passed	
SECTION 5: This Resolution is It for the immediate preservation of the public of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediate Administrative Assistant/Mayor's Court Resolution receives the affirmative vote of Council, it shall take effect and be in force otherwise it shall take effect and be in force of the council.	c peace, health, and safety of ediately establishing the pay Clerk prior to the effective f at least five (5) members eupon its passage by Council a	the residents of the Village for the Police Department e date, and, provided this elected or appointed to this and approval by the Mayor,
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

PAGE NO.	0817	

Resolution No. 2024-82 Passed	, 20 24
-------------------------------	---------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING SECTION 1 OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-108 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION FOR THE MAYOR'S COURT MAGISTRATE, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 33.04 of the Codified Ordinances of the Village provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the Magistrate of the Mayor's Court; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Magistrate of the Mayor's Court; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Magistrate of the Mayor's Court.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: That as to compensation, Resolution No. 2023-108, Section 1 is hereby amended to state as follows:

The compensation for the services of the Mayor's Court Magistrate shall be an annual salary of \$8,500.00, which shall be payable monthly by the Village.

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 4: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for Magistrate effective December 28, 2024, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

PAGE NO.	0818

Resolution No. 2024-82	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

Resolution No. 2024-83	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
------------------------	--------	----------------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2023-107, SECTION 1 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION OF THE PART-TIME ZONING INSPECTOR, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Part-Time Zoning Inspector; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Part-Time Zoning Inspector.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: Section 1 of Resolution No. 2023-107 is hereby amended to state as follows:

The Part-Time Zoning Inspector shall be compensated at an annual salary of \$9,500.00, which shall be payable monthly.

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 4: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for the Zoning Inspector prior to the effective date, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

-		~~	3.70	0000		
Р.	A	GE	NO.	0820		

Resolution No. 2024-83	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>	
	President Pro-Temp	Date	
	Mayor	Date	
Attest:			
Clark Transprar	<del> </del>		

Resolution No.	2024-84	Passed	, 20 24

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2023-109, SECTION 1 TO INCREASE THE COMPENSATION FOR THE PART-TIME POSITION OF CEMETERY SEXTON, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(D) of the Village's Charter provides this Council with the authority to establish and determine the compensation of the employees of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended increasing the compensation of the Part-Time Cemetery Sexton; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to increase the compensation of the Part-Time Cemetery Sexton.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

<u>SECTION 1:</u> Section 1 of Resolution No. 2023-109 is hereby amended to state as follows:

The position of part-time Cemetery Sexton shall be compensated at the annual salary of \$2,500.00, which shall be payable monthly. The Mayor shall be responsible for determining the amount of hours and establishing the necessary schedule.

SECTION 2: This Resolution shall be effective as of December 28, 2024.

SECTION 3: The Village of Mogadore finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 4: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately establishing the pay for the Cemetery Sexton prior to the effective date, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

P.	A	GΕ	N	O.	0822	

Resolution No. 2024-84	Passed	, 20_24
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

PAGE NO.	082.3	

Resolution No. 2024-85	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
------------------------	--------	----------------

SPONSOR: STREETS COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF GPD GROUP TO SERVE AS THE MUNICIPAL ENGINEER, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 6.01 of the Charter of the Village of Mogadore provides that the Mayor shall serve as the Director of Public Service until such time as this Council may determine that it is in the best interest of the Municipality to appoint some other person to that office; and

WHEREAS, Section 6.05 of the Charter of the Village of Mogadore provides that the Mayor shall appoint within the Department of Public Service, subject to an affirmative vote of five (5) members of Council, a Municipal Engineer for a term not to exceed two (2) years; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to said Section 6.05 of the Charter of the Village of Mogadore, the Municipal Engineer shall be a registered civil engineer and shall perform such duties as are from time to time required of him or her by the Director of Public Service; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed Glaus, Pyle, Schomer, Burns & DeHaven, Inc. ("GPD Group") to serve as Municipal Engineer for the period of January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2026, subject to confirmation of this Council as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to confirm the appointment of GPD Group as the Municipal Engineer for the period of January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2026, and to further authorize the Mayor to execute a professional services agreement with GPD Group for the provision of engineering services for the Village as the Municipal Engineer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Portage and Summit, Ohio as follows:

SECTION 1: This Council hereby confirms the appointment of GPD Group as the Municipal Engineer for the period of January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2026, provided, however, that the Village may terminate such appointment at any time during said period without damage or other recourse by GPD Group.

SECTION 2: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to sign a professional services agreement with GPD Group and any and all other documents necessary for provision of engineering services for the Village as the Municipal Engineer. Said professional services agreement shall provide as follows:

(a) Engineering services rendered by GPD Group in consulting with Council or committees thereof at any regularly scheduled or special meetings thereof shall be compensated as set forth in the professional services agreement without the issuance of a purchase order.

PAGE NO.	0824

Resolution No.	2024-85	Passed	, 20 24
accountable a to,	4V4T"0J	i ussou	12027

- (b) Otherwise, GPD Group shall perform engineering services for the Village as requested by the Director of Public Service, which requests shall be by purchase order issued under the hand and seal of the Village Clerk-Treasurer, and, pursuant to the professional services agreement all such services shall be compensated by the Village at the rates set forth in Exhibit "A.".
- (c) GPD Group shall negotiate with the Village lump sum fees for all municipal design projects requiring the completion of design plans. Invoices will be processed monthly based upon an estimated percent complete for lump sum contracts. The lump sum fee fees shall cover project engineering and administrative services including preliminary plans, estimates, preliminary surveying, work drawings, permit applications, general supervision, and bidding.
- (d) Contract administration, pay estimate processing, and funding agency coordination will be paid at the rates identified in the "Hourly Rate Schedule" attached as Exhibit "A," which is incorporated herein.
- (e) For miscellaneous engineering and surveying services not requiring working drawings and for all other engineering services provided under the professional services agreement, GPD Group shall be compensated by the Village at the rates set forth in Exhibit "A."
- (f) Plans in excess of five (5) sets, necessary out-of-pocket expense, soil borings, testing, application/permit fees, and field supplies will be invoiced to the Village at cost.
- (g) GPD Group shall submit statements for compensation to the Clerk-Treasurer no more frequently than monthly.

SECTION 3: GPD Group, as the Municipal Engineer, shall designate a representative (servicing as the designated representative of GPD Group) to attend all Council meetings, Street Committee meetings, and meetings as requested, and for the day-to-day advising and consulting with Council members, the Mayor, other Village officials and employees, and residents and businesses within the community. Unless otherwise agreed in writing between the Village and GPD Group, the representative of GPD Group will be Matthew Glass, P.E.

SECTION 4: This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 5: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of appointing the Municipal Engineer prior to the commencement of the two-year period of appointment on January 1, 2025, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its

PAGE NO.	0825
TAGE NO.	0023

Resolution No. <u>2024-85</u>	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
passage by Council and approval by the period allowed by law.	Mayor, otherwise it shall take ef	fect and be in force at the earl
•		
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
······· - · ·	<b></b>	
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

# Rate Schedule (2025 & 2026)

\*See the following pages for Rate Schedule.\*

Please note — the Hourly Rate Schedule is based upon GPD Group's internal employee classification categories. Employees may move from one category to another based upon promotion. The employee classification is not meant to be a "job description" as staff from multiple categories can perform the same services. Actual rates billed are reflective of the staffing available to perform the needed services at the time of service request.

# **GPD Group - Village of Mogadore (2025 & 2026 Rate Schedule)**

Dropogod Housey Data Schodula	2025 & 2026
Proposed Hourly Rate Schedule Project Principal	<b>Rate</b> \$156.00
Senior Project Manager	\$145.00
Senior Project Manager Senior Engineer	\$126.00
Senior Architect	\$126.00 \$126.00
Senior Architect Senior Landscape Architect	\$125.00
Landscape Architect	\$125.00 \$114.00
Design Engineer/Design Architect	\$114.00 \$114.00
Staff Engineer/Staff Architect	\$103.00
Engineer / Architect – Co-op/ Intern	\$63 <b>.</b> 50
Senior Environmental Scientist	\$125.00
Environmental Specialist	\$100.00
,	•
Senior Designer	\$100.00 \$85.00
Staff Designer  CAD-Drafter	•
Construction Inspector Construction Coordinator	\$80.00
	\$97.50 \$70.00
Project Aid/Clerical	\$70.00 \$144.00
Survey Project Manager	\$144.00 \$136.00
Senior Surveyor	\$126.00
Field Survey Technician 3	\$123.00 \$103.00
Office Survey Technician 3	\$103.00 \$107.50
Field Survey Technician 2	\$107.50
Office Survey Technician 2	\$87.50
Field Survey Technician 1	\$92.50
Office Survey Technician 1	\$72.50 \$1.40.00
Geotech – Project Manager	\$140.00
Drill / Lab / Field Manager	\$114.00
Sr. Driller & Field & Lab Tech	\$100.00
Driller & Field & Lab Tech	\$83.00
Asst. Driller & Field & Lab Tech	\$67.00
Geotech Field Supplies	2025 & 2026
Fixed Costs	Rate
Mortar Cubes (Each)	\$13.00
Grout Prisms (Each)	\$24.00
Concrete Test Cylinders (Each)	\$17.00
Concrete Test Beams (Each)	\$55.00
Drill Rig (per Day)	\$750.00
Hydrovac Trailer (Per Day)	\$300.00
Floor Flatnoss Cause (Por Day)	φ300.00 φ12Ε 00

Floor Flatness Gauge (Per Day)

Nuclear Density Gauge (Per Day)

\$125.00

\$65.00

<b>PAGE</b>	NO.	0826	
TAUL	MO.	U04U	

Resolution No. 2024-86	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
------------------------	--------	----------------

SPONSOR: SAFETY COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SELL A 2015 FORD EXPLORER POLICE CRUISER VIA ONLINE AUCTION THROUGH GOVDEALS.COM, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 3.10(F) of the Charter of the Village of Mogadore provides this Council the power to determine the method, manner, consideration and procedure for the sale or disposal of real and personal property on behalf of the Village; and

WHEREAS, Section 721.15(D) of the Ohio Revised Code empowers the Village to sell, regardless of the property's value, personal property acquired for use by the Village, which is no longer needed for public use, or is obsolete or unfit for the use for which it was acquired, by internet auction upon the adoption for each calendar year of a resolution expressing the Council's intent to sell such property by internet auction; and

WHEREAS, the Village owns a certain 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser that was previously used by the Police Department that is no longer needed for public use, is obsolete and is unfit for use by the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Police Chief have recommended to this Council that it authorize the sale of said 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser via internet auction conducted by Govdeals.com on behalf of the Village; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that the 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser is no longer needed for public use, is obsolete and is unfit for use by the Village and that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to authorize the Mayor to sell the aforementioned 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser via internet auction conducted by Govdeals.com on behalf of the Village.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

<u>SECTION 1:</u> This Council hereby finds that the 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser is no longer needed for public use, is obsolete and is unfit for use by the Village.

SECTION 2: This Council hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor to sell the 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser via internet auction conducted by Govdeals.com on behalf of the Village. The Mayor, Clerk-Treasurer and any other Village employees are hereby authorized to take all actions reasonable and necessary to effectuate said internet auction.

SECTION 3: The internet auction authorized in Section 2 shall be conducted by Govdeals.com and shall not be completed until the passage of the statutory minimum of ten (10) calendar days for bidding on the aforementioned property.

PAGE NO.	0827	
TILOU ITO,		

Passed \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 20<u>24</u>

# RECORD OF ORDINANCES

Resolution No. 2024-86

SECTION 4: The internet auction conducted in accordance with Section 721 Code.		
SECTION 5: No reserve shall be so 2 of this Resolution.	set by the Village for the inter	net auction authorized in Section
SECTION 6: No proceeds from the be delivered to the Clerk-Treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, with verification of receipt delivered to the clerk-treasurer by bargeneral fund, which were by bargeneral	nk or cashier's check, or ele	ectronic transfer to the Village's
Govdeals.com and any other person necess the 2015 Ford Explorer Police Cruiser.		
SECTION 8: It is the intention of Section 721.15(D) for the authorization of t use, is obsolete and/or is unfit for use by the	he sale of personal property t	hat is no longer needed for public
SECTION 9: This Council finds ar and relating to the adoption of this Resol deliberations of this Council and any of its copen to the public, in compliance with all leads to the public of the public	ution were taken in open me committees that resulted in thi	eetings of this Council and any
SECTION 10: This Resolution is he immediate preservation of the public peace, and for the purpose of immediately selling and receiving payment for the same, and, pr five (5) members elected or appointed to the by Council and approval by the Mayor, other allowed by law.	health, and safety of the residuely unneeded personal proportion received this Resolution receives Council, it shall take effect	dents of the Village of Mogadore erty for maximum value possible es the affirmative vote of at least and be in force upon its passage
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

PÁGE NO.	0828
	0020

Resolution No. 2024-87	Passed	, 20_24
------------------------	--------	---------

SPONSOR: UTILITIES COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CLERK-TREASURER TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS FOR LABOR AND MATERIALS FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THE EXISTING MONUMENT SIGN AT VILLAGE HALL WITH A NEW ELECTRONIC MONUMENT SIGN, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Section 14.03 of the Village's Charter provides that all contracts exceeding one-half (1/2) of the statutory threshold of \$75,000.00 shall be undertaken by advertising for and accepting sealed bids; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended that the Village replace the existing monument sign at the Village Hall with a new electronic monument sign; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Engineer intend to prepare plans and specifications for such new electronic monument sign, and the Mayor and Engineer estimate that the cost for labor and materials for the new electronic monument sign will exceed the threshold set forth in Section 14.03 of the Village's Charter and therefore will require competitive bidding; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village to authorize and direct the Clerk-Treasurer to advertise for bids for labor and materials for the new electronic monument sign at the Village Hall.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: It is hereby determined necessary that the Village enter into a contract for labor and materials necessary for a new electronic monument sign at the Village Hall in accordance with the plans and specifications prepared by the Mayor and Village Engineer.

SECTION 2: The Clerk-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to advertise for bids for the new electronic monument sign in accordance with the plans and specifications for the project to be placed on file in the Office of the Clerk-Treasurer. A report of the responses shall be provided to Council. The Village Engineer shall assist as necessary.

SECTION 3: This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

PAGE NO.	0829
TAULION	

Resolution No. 2024-87	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
SECTION 4: This Resolution is he immediate preservation of the public peace, and for the purpose of proceeding with t possible so that the project may commence repair, and, provided this Resolution receiv appointed to this Council, it shall take effect the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and	health, and safety of the residents of he aforementioned competitive bits to replace the existing sign that it es the affirmative vote of at least fit t and be in force upon its passage b	of the Village of Mogadore dding as expeditiously as so not in good condition or ive (5) members elected or by Council and approval by
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
Clerk-Treasurer		

PAGE NO.	0830	
TYYOU INO.	0020	

Ordinance No. <u>2024-88</u>	Passed	, 20_24
------------------------------	--------	---------

SPONSOR: FINANCE COMMITTEE

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE MOGADORE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR A GRANT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$3,000.00 PER YEAR FOR THREE YEARS, A TOTAL GRANT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$9,000.00, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the Mogadore Historical Society has experienced increases in property and casualty insurance and other insurance costs and expenses in recent years; and

WHEREAS, due to such increased insurance costs and expenses, the Village desires to assist the Mogadore Historical Society with an annual grant in an amount not to exceed \$3,000.00 per year for three years, a total grant amount not to exceed \$9,000.00; and

WHEREAS, this Council finds and determines, after reviewing all pertinent information, that it is necessary and in the best interest of the Village of Mogadore to enter into a grant agreement with the Mogadore Historical Society to provide for the aforementioned grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Village of Mogadore, Counties of Summit and Portage, State of Ohio, that:

SECTION 1: The Mayor and all other Village officials are hereby authorized to do all things necessary to enter into a grant agreement with the Mogadore Historical Society for an annual grant in an amount not to exceed \$3,000.00 per year for three years, a total not to exceed \$9,000.00.

SECTION 2: The Mayor is further authorized to sign any and all documents and/or agreements on behalf of the Village as may be necessary and appropriate for the undertaking of the same.

<u>SECTION 3</u>: This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were taken in open meetings of this Council and any deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements.

SECTION 4: This Resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the residents of the Village of Mogadore and for the purpose of immediately providing the grant funds to the Mogadore Historical Society that it may timely pay its insurance-related expenses, and, provided this Resolution receives the affirmative vote of at least five (5) members elected or appointed to this Council, it shall take effect and be in force upon its passage by Council and approval by the Mayor, otherwise it shall take effect and be in force at the earliest period allowed by law.

PAGE NO.	0831	
*****		

Ordinance No. <u>2024-88</u>	Passed	, 20 <u>24</u>
	President Pro-Temp	Date
	Mayor	Date
Attest:		
collection as an experience of	*** ** *** ** ** ** **** **** **** *****	